
Questions for RFI34101-8916 
Armed Guard Services, Military Statewide RFI 

Questions and Answers 
03/09/2016 

1. Is Dynamic Security currently providing Site Managers, Shift Leaders, and Security Officers 
that meet the requirements outlined in the Army and Air National Guard Specifications? 

Answer: Yes 

2. Are you satisfied with Dynamic Security's existing personnel provided under the existing 
contract? 

Answer: Yes 

3. Would you prefer to keep existing officers/staff if changing to a new contractor? 

Answer: The State does not have a preference. 

4. What is Dynamic Security's current bill rate for each personnel classification? 

a. Site Manager 
b. Shift Leader 
c. Security Officer (Guard) 

Answer: Dynamic Security is currently invoicing the State per unit price for year 5 of Contract 
Number 21484. (See attached) 

5. Can you provide the total number of security officers presently working under the existing 
contract? 

Answer: The total number of security officers for January 2016 was as follows. 

Air National Guard Bases: 
Berry Field, Nashville 16 
McGhee Tyson, Knoxville 14 
Memphis 20 

Army National Guard Installations: 
Houston Barracks, Nashville 13 
Smyrna 11 
Jackson 1 
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6. Can you provide rank, tenure, or pay differential information on existing security personnel? 
(No names or personal information needed, just pay or tenure information.) 

Answer: No. Pursuant to the current contract, the contract vendor does not provide the State with 
rank, tenure, or pay differential information for security personnel. 

7. Are there any state or federal prevailing wage that will apply to this contract? 

Answer: No 

8. How can we provide DOD Secret Security Clearance for our company and each site manager 
prior to submission when the links that are provided in Section 1.5 C) and D) (page 4) tell us we 
are unable to request one on our own? We need more clarification about this. Following the 
security clearance link provided in this section, we are brought to a page in which the second 
paragraph states: 

"A facility security clearance (FCL) is provided to a defense contractor as a result of a 
contract requiring performance on a classified effort. Though the contractor does not have 
to possess an FCL prior to bidding on a contract, it is necessary perform on the 
classified effort. A defense contractor can bid on and win the contract as long as they are 
eligible to apply for and receive the FCL. Once they win the contract, the rewarding activity 
provides justification for the security clearance. " 

Answer: 

1A) The bidders company's DOD Facility Clearance (FCL) is not required at the time of the bid 
response. The FCL is required to be provided within seven (7) business days from the date 
of the request. If the prospective bidder has not already obtained its FCL prior to this bidding 
process, the company recommended for award can submit at that time a request to the State or a 
cleared DOD Facility Contractor to sponsor the bidder for the company's FCL. 

1 B) To obtain a DOD Facility Clearance (FCL) please contact the Department of Defense, 
Defense Security Service (DSS). Refer to the following website: 
http://www.dss.millisplfac_clear/per_sec_clear_proc_faqs.html (see attached). 

2A) The DOD secret level security clearance or higher for the Site Managers will be required to 
be submitted with the bid as well as the Resume's and Letters of Intent. 

28) To obtain a Personnel Security Clearance (PCL) please contact the Defense Industrial 
Security Clearance Office (DISCO). Refer to the following website: www.clearancejobs.com. (see 
attached) · 

9. Will the Tennessee Department of the Military provide the PowerPoint training material mentioned 
in Section 2, item C1 in the specifications? 

Answer: The PowerPoint will be provided only to security officers attending Orientation Training at 
each Air National Guard base. 
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0. Will a Special Agreement Check (SAC) satisfy the requirement specifie9 in Section 2.12.2 of the 
pecifications (pages 14-15)? If not, what level of background check will suffice? 

Answer: No. the Reimbursable Suitability/Security Investigation (RSI) is also required. Please refer to 
the following website: http://www.opm.gov (see attached). 

11. Is the 30-minute before and after shift (Post Associated Time -PAT) billable? 

Answer: Yes, the pre-post associated time (PAT) is billable to the State. Note: The post-shift has 
been deleted from the specifications. (i.e. ANG 2.13.1, Army 2.14.1). See the revised 
specifications listed below: 
Place of Performance/Hours of Operations (Shifts). The Contractor shall support the DFC/DOMS at each designated 

base. The shift start/stop times will be determined by the DFC/DOMS or his/her designated military representative, 

in conjunction with the solicitation Event/Contract requirements. It is recommended that contract security 

personnel not exceed forty (40) hours per week to include related Post-Associated Time (PAT). PAT is defined as 

time required for weapons/equipment issue and turn-in, pre-shift briefings (Guardmount) and transit time to post. 

PAT is estimated to be thirty (30} minutes prior to each shift. Contract guards will stand Guardmount pre-shift 

briefings along with the DFC/DOMS designated personnel. The time for PAT will be invoiced based on the sign-in 

and sign-out sheet. Contract personnel shall be required to be at their assigned posts, with all equipment, at the 

time their shift is to start. 

2. Will the DFC allow TASERS to be carried by security personnel as a secondary, less than lethal 
option if the contractor provides them? 

Answer: No. this is applicable to both the ANG and Army. 

13. Referencing Section 1.4 of the specifications, is there any Historical Data available concerning 
the need to staff the ALCOA Army Flight Facility or the Jackson Army Flight Facility? 

Answer: 

Alcoa: Armed Guards, 6699 hours Year 1 (10/01/10 to 09/30/11) and 8012 hours Year 2 
(10/01/2011 to 09/30/12). 

Jackson: Shift Leader, Dayshift, 1169 hours to date, Year 5 (09/01/2015 to 01/01/2016). 

Note: The Invitation to Bid lines have been adjusted to reflect the above listed quantities and the 
estimated maximum liability has been adjusted to reflect the same. 

14. At what time do we need to present the names and information on the guards we prospectively 
will use at the bases ? 
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Answer: The names and license numbers for the Shift Leaders and Guards will be required to be 
provided within seven (7) business days from the date of the request. This requirement will only 
affect the low bidder meeting all specifications and shall occur during the bid evaluation phase. 

15. How do we obtain DOD clearance? 
Answer: 

1) To obtain a DOD Facility Clearance (FCL) please contact the Department of Defense, Defense 
Security Service (DSS). Refer to the following website: 
http://www.dss.mil/isplfac_clear/per_sec_clear_proc_faqs.html (see attached). 

2) To obtain a Personnel Security Clearance (PCL) please contact the Defense Industrial Security 
Clearance Office (DISCO). Refer to the following website: www.clearancejobs.com. (see attached) 

16. Who pays for DOD clearance? 

Answer: The Contractor shall be responsible for all applicable costs. 

17. How long is the processes for DOD clearance ? 

Answer: To obtain the answer to the question, the Contractor will need to contact the Department 
of Defense, Office Security Services (DSS) or the Defense Industrial Security Clearance Office 
(DISCO). Refer to the websites listed in Answer Number 15. 

8. Does the DOD clearance have to be completed prior to bid date? 

Answer: 

1) No. The bidders company's DOD Facility Clearance (FCL) is not required at the time of the bid 
response. The FCL is required to be provided within seven (7) business days from the date of 
the request. If the prospective bidder has not already obtained its FCL prior to this bidding 
process, the company recommended for award can submit at that time a request to the State or a 
cleared DOD Facility Contractor to sponsor the bidder for the company's FCL. 

2) The DOD secret level security clearance or higher for the Site Managers will be required to be 
submitted with the bid, as well as, the Resume's and Letters of Intent. 

19. What is the level of DOD clearance? 

Answer: The DOD clearance shall be secret or higher. 

20. Do we provide at our expense physicals and psychological exams for the guards? 

Answer: Yes 

21 . What is the pay cycle for the contract ? (How often does the State pay the contractor for the 
service) 
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Answer: The Prompt Payment Act of 1985 requires that, if no date for payment is agreed upon in 
the contract, payment will be made within forty-five (45) days after receipt of a correct invoice. 

22. What are the current bill rates and pay rates for all positions? 

Answer: Dynamic Security is currently invoicing the State per unit price for year 5 of Contract 
Number 21484. (See attached) 

23. For the letters of intent.. .just to clarify: Do we need letters from the Site Manager and Shift 
Leader from each location? Letters from guards are not required? 

Answer: 

A) The Site Manager and Shift Leaders Letters of Intent are for the intended placement at 
Berry Field (ANG-Nashville), Houston Barracks (Army-Nashville), McGhee Tyson (ANG­
Knoxville), Memphis Air National Guard (ANG-Memphis), and VTS-Smyrna (Army-Smyrna). 

B) Letters of Intent are not required for guards. 

24. What is the purpose of having the guards and supervisors sign letters of intent? 

Answer: The State does not require Letters of Intent from the guards. The State is requiring the 
Letters of Intent from the Site Managers and the Shift Leaders to insure that the bidder is 
emonstrating its ability to provide the services listed in the specifications. 

*******************************THE END OF QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS***************************** 

Special Terms and Condition Changes: 

1) F.O.B. Destination (Statewide), added Youth Challenge Academy location. 

2) Volume, Multi-year, Amended to $12,509,541 .91 with the following yearly amounts: 

1st 12 MONTHS $ 2,466,347.51 
2nd 12 MONTHS $ 2,587,720.38 
3rd 12 MONTHS $ 2,479,61 7.86 
4th 12 MONTHS $ 2,479,617.86 
5th 12 MONTHS $ 2,496,238.30 

3) Award Criteria, added the following: 
The following Submittals and Responses with Bid are Required to be Considered for Award: 
1) The minimum requested resume's and Letters of Intent for Site Managers, five (5) and Shift 

Leaders, fifteen (15). 
2) Evidence that each Site Manager has a secret level or higher security clearance (DOD). 
3) List the brand/model of weapon bid (Must be 9mm Berretta, Model 92FS) 
4) List the make/model, model year and mileage for five (5) vehicles. 
5) Provide three (3) comparable references (Must be Armed Guard References). 
6) Provide your company's Tennessee Armed Security Guard License Number. 
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The following documents shall be required to be submitted within seven (7) business days from 
the date of the request to be Considered for Award: 
1) Evidence of Bidders DOD Facility Clearance. 
2) Evidence of Bidders CAGE (Commercial and Government Entity) Code. 
3) Guards names and Armed Guard license numbers, Minimum of thirty-nine (39). 
4) Shift Leaders names and Armed Guard license numbers, Minimum of fifteen (15). Names must 

match the resume's and Letters of Intent. 

4) Added the Confidentially of Records Term & Condition. 
Strict standards of confidentiality of records and information shall be maintained in 
accordance with applicable state and federal law. All material and information, regardless of 
form, medium or method of communication, provided to the Contractor by the State or 
acquired by the Contractor on behalf of the State that is regarded as confidential under state 
or federal law shall be regarded as "Confidential Information." Nothing in this Section shall permit 
Contractor to disclose any Confidential Information, regardless of whether it has been disclosed or 
made available to the Contractor due to intentional or negligent actions or inactions of agents of the 
State or third parties. Confidential Information shall not be disclosed except as required or permitted 
under state or federal law. Contractor shall take all necessary steps to safeguard the confidentiality 
of such material or information in conformance with applicable state and federal law. 
The obligations set forth in this Section shall survive the termination of this Contract. 

5) Added the Confidentially of Documents Term & Condition 
Pursuant to Tennessee Public Records Act, Tenn. Code Ann. §10-7-504 the State will keep 
confidential any records, documents and papers related to the security of the United States and/or the 
State of Tennessee or protecting government property that are or may be submitted with a respondent's 
proposal or clarifications to this solicitation. Respondent agrees not to disclose any contents or related 
documents of this solicitation or any resulting contract without prior approval from the State. 

Air National Guard Specifications Changes: 

1) 1.5 (Contractor Requirements): 

D) DOD Secret Clearance. Changed website to: www.clearancejobs.com. 
E) FCL. Changed website to: http://www.dss.mil/isp/fac_clear/per_sec_clear_proc_faqs.html. 
E) Cage Code. Changed website to: http://dlis.dla.mil. 

1) 2C.1, Last paragraph (Reduced from 100% to 80% to pass the test). 

2) 2C.2 (Initial Duty Position Evaluation - Amended to include "initial") 

3) 2C.3 (The Recertification Duty Position Evaluation- added) 

4) 2C .4 (Pass/Fail Requirements- added notes for paragraphs 1 and 2. 

5) 2.3.1.1 (Uniform Requirements), Para Q, added "Inner or Outer'' for Level lilA Body Armor 

6) 2.12.2 (NAC and NCIC Requirements). Changed the website to: http://www.opm.gov. 

7) 2.13.1 (Place of Performance/Hours of Operations I Shifts -amended to limit to pre-shift and the 
Contractor shall invoice for the PAT based on the sign-in and sign-out sheet. Contract personnel 
hall be required to be at their assigned posts, with all equipment, at the time their shift is to start). 
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~ rmy National Guard Specification changes: 

) A new location has been added for the Army National Guard. The Youth Challenge Academy, 
3965 Stewarts Lane, Nashville, TN. The following changes have been made: 

A) Lines 106 thru 110 have been added for the Youth Challenge Academy. 

B) The Army National Guard specifications have been amended concerning the addition of the Youth 
Challenge Academy as listed below: 

B 1) 1.4.2, Index Added 

82) 1.1.5, Listed location 

83) 1.3.4, Added the guard requirement of: 

a) Two (2) Guards per shift: Total: 6 Per Day (24f7 Coverage, 3 Shifts). 

84) 1.4.2, Added stating that the location is anticipated to start 10/01/2016. 

85) 1.6, DOMS, Amended to exclude the Youth Challenge Academy. 

86) 2.0, added "or a State employee" to the last sentence. 

2) 1.5 (Contractor Requirements): 

D) DOD Secret Clearance. Changed website to: www.clearancejobs.com. 
E) FCL. Changed website to: http://www.dss.mil/isp/fac_clear/per_sec_clear_proc_faqs.html. 
E) Cage Code. Changed website to: http://dlis.dla.mil. 

3) 2.13.2 (NAC and NCIC Requirements). Changed the website to: http://www.opm.gov. 

4) 2.14.1 (Place of Performance/Hours of Operations Shifts -amended to limit to pre-shift and the 
Contractor shall invoice for the PAT based on the sign-in and sign-out sheet. Contract personnel 
shall be required to be at their assigned posts, with all equipment, at the time their shift is to start). 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1) The Questions and Answer Document 

2) Contract 21484, Dynamic Security 

3) The Facility Clearance Process, FAQs (FCL) 

4) Security Clearance Frequently Asked Questions (FCL & PCL) 

5) U.S. Office of Personnel Management, Federal Investigation Notice No. 14-06 (SAC & RSI) 

6) Defense Logistics Agency (CAGE Code) 
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Army National Guard Specification changes: 

1) A new location has been added for the Army National Guard. The Youth Challenge Academy, 
3965 Stewarts Lane, Nashville, TN. The following changes have been made: 

A) Lines 1 06 thru 11 0 have been added for the Youth Challenge Academy. 

B) The Army National Guard specifications have been amended concerning the addition of the Youth 
Challenge Academy as listed below: 

81) 1.4.2, Index Added 

82) 1.1 .5, Listed location 

83) 1.3.4, Added the guard requirement of: 

a) Two (2) Guards per shift: Total: 6 Per Day (2417 Coverage, 3 Shifts). 

84) 1.4.2, Added stating that the location is anticipated to start 10/01/2016. 

85) 1.6, DOMS, Amended to exclude the Youth Challenge Academy. 

86) 2.0, added "or a State employee" to the last sentence. 

2) 1.5 (Contractor Requirements): 

D) DOD Secret Clearance. Changed website to: www.clearancejobs.com. 
E) FCL. Changed website to: http://www.dss.millisp/fac_clear/per_sec_clear_proc_faqs.html. 
E) Cage Code. Changed website to: http://dlis.dla.mil. 

3) 2.13.2 (NAC and NCIC Requirements). Changed the website to: http://www.opm.gov. 

4) 2.14.1 (Place of Performance/Hours of Operations Shifts -amended to limit to pre-shift and the 
Contractor shall invoice for the PAT based on the sign-in and sign-out sheet. Contract personnel 
shall be required to be at their assigned posts, with all equipment, at the time their shift is to start). 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1) The Questions and Answer Document 

2) Contract 21484, Dynamic Security 

3) The Facility Clearance Process, FAQs (FCL) 

4) Security Clearance Frequently Asked Questions (FCL & PCL) 

5) U.S. Office of Personnel Management, Federal Investigation Notice No. 14-06 (SAC & RSI) 

Note: Please contact the Federal agency for current pricing. 

6) Defense Logistics Agency (CAGE Code) 
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STATE OF TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 
CENTRAL PROCUREMENT OFFICE 

Agency Term Contract Multi-Year-Issued to: 

Dynamic Security Inc. 
Sara Hulsey 
PO Box 451 
Tuscumbia AL 35674 

VendoriD:OOOOOO 1315 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 0000000000000000000021484 

TITLE: ARMED SECURITY GUARD SVC,7 LOC 

START DATE: October 01,2010 END DATE: June 30, 2016 

Contract Contact laformatioa: 
State offennessee 
Department of General Services, Central Procurement Office 
Contract Administnstor: Crystal M Lysinger 
3rd Floor, William R Snodgrass, Tennessee Tower 
312 Rosa l. Parks Avenue 
Nashville, TN 37243-1 I 02 
Phone: 615-313-0691 

Line Information 

Line 1 
Item ID: 1000111664 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Army NaJional Guard Armory, Houston Barroclcs, 3041 Sidco 
Drive, Nashville, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO I 

Unit Price: $ 13.55 

Line 3 
Item 10: 1000 111665 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Army NaJiona/ Guard Armory, Houston Barroclcs:. 3041 Sidco 
Drive, Nashville, TN Year 1 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor ltem!Pm 1 #: SIDCO 2 

Unit Price: $ 13.55 



Line4 
Item ID: 1000111666 
Security guard services armed security guard for: .Army National Guard Armory, Houston Barraclcs, 304 I Sidco 
Drive, Nashville, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part 1#: SIDCO 3 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Une5 
Item ID: 1000111655 
Security guard services armed site manager for: .Army National Guard Armory, Houston Barracks, 3041 Sidco 
Drhle, Nashville, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part##: SIDCO 4 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

Uae6 
Item 10: 1000111656 
Strttrity Gwrd servica armed shift leader for: Army National Gll4rd Anrwry, HOIISton &rracla, 3041 Sidco 
~ Nashvillt!. TN Year 2 
Unit ofMeaS.ire: HR 
Vendor Item/Part##: SJDCO 5 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

IA.e7 
Item ID: 1000111657 
&airily gtUFd services armed security guard for: Army Nati()lf(J/ G1Jard Armory, Hcnaton Barrac/cs, 3041 Sidco 
Drwe, Naslrvil/e, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 6 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Liae·s 
Item ID: 1000111658 
St!CIIt'ity guard services armed site manager for: Army National Guard Armory, HOIISton, Barracks, 3041 SidCQ 
Drhle, ND!lhville, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 7 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

Uae9 
Item ID: I 000 111659 
&CJirity guard services, armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Armory, Houston ·Barraclcs, 304 I Sidco 
Drhle, Naslwi/Le, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIOCO 8 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

UoelO 
Item ID: 1 000 111660 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard Armory, Houston Barrnclcs, 304 I Sidco 
Drive, Nashville, TN, Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 9 

Unit Price: S 12.91 



Line t t 
Item ID: 1000111661 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Army National Guard Armory, Houston Barracks, 304 I Sidco 
Drive, Nashville, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SlDCO 10 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

Unc12 
Item 10: 1000111662 
Security Guard &rvices armed shift leader for:. Army National Guard Armory, Houston Barracks 3041 Sidco 
Drive, Nashville, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO II 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

Line 13 
Item ID: I 000111667 
&airily gJdlt'd services armed secvrity guard for: Amy National Guard Armory, Houston Barracb 3041 Sidco 
Drive, Nll3hville, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 12 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Lieel .. 
Item ID: I 000111668 
Sealrity guard servicu ar~d site manager for: Army National G11ard Armory, HoiiSton Barracb 3041 Sidco 
Drive,-Nashvil/e, TN Year J 
UoitofMeasure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIOCO 13 

Unit P..-itt: S 13.55 

Une15 
Item ID: 1000 I I I 669 
SecrJTiJy guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Armory, Houston Barrach 3041 Sidco Drive, 
Nashville, TN Year J 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIOCO 14 

Uoit Pric:e: S 13.55 

Line 16 
Item ID: 1000 I I 1663 
Secwity guard services armed see~~rity guard for: Army National Guard Armory, Houston Barraclcs 3041 Sidco 
Drive, Nll3hville, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 15 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line 17 
Item ID: I 00011 I 670 
SeCIII'ity guard services armed site manager for: Army National Guard. Volunteer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh Blvd, 
Smyrna, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 16 

Unit Price: S 17.77 



Line 18 
Item 10: 1000111671 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Army National G11ard, . Volunteer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh Blvd, 
Smyrna, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 17 

Unit Price: $ 14.52 

Uael9 
Item ID: 1000111672 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard, Volunteer Training Site 609 Fitilntgh 
Blvd, Smyrna, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIOCO 18 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

LinelO 
Item ID: 1000111674 
&airily guard services armed site manager for: ArM)' Natiottal Guard. Jlolunteer Training Site 609 Fitzlw.gh Blvd 
StrrymQ, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part #: SIDCO 20 

Unit Price: S 17.77 

Lillell 
Item ID: 1000111676 
Secwily guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard. JlolunJeer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh Blvd. 
Smyrna, TN Year 2 
Uuit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part #: SIDCO 21 

Uait Price: S 14.52 

Linell 
Item ID: 10001116n 
Sectlrity guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard. Jlolunteer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh 
Blvd Smyrna, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 22 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Liae23 
Item ID: 1000111678 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Army National Guard, Volunteer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh Blvd, 
Smyrna, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 23 

Unit Price: S 17.77 

Line24 
Item ID: 1000 I I 1679 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard, Volunteer Training Site 609 Fitz.hugh Blvd, 
Smyrna, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 24 

Unit Price: S 14.52 



Line 25 
Item ID: 1000111675 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard. Volunteer Training Sire 609 Fitzhugh Blvd 
Smyrna, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 25 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line26 
ltern ID: JOOOJ 11680 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Army National Guard, Jlolunreer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh Blvd, 
Smyrna, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 26 

Unit Price: $17.77 

Linel7 
Item ID: 1000111681 
Security guard 111t11iet!S armed shift leader for: Army NaJional Guard, Volunteer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh Blvd, 
S.na. TN Yeor 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 27 

Uait Price: $14.52 

U.e28 
Item m: 1000 I 11682 
S«Nrity guorcl services armed S«JJrity guard for: Army National Guard, Vollltfteer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh 
Blvd, Smyrna. TN Yeor 4 
Unit of Measure: HR · 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 28 

Unit Price: $12.91 

Unel9 
Item ID: 1000111683 
Security guard sen>ices armed sire manager for: Army National Guard, Vo/rmfeer Training Site 609 Fitrhugh Blvd, 
Smyrna, TN Year 5 · 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part II: SIDCO 29 

Unit Price:$ 17.77 

Line30 
Item 10: 1000111684 
Security guard sen>ices ormt!d shift leader for: Army National Guard, Volumeer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh Blvd. 
Smyrna, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 30 

Unit Price:$ 14.52 

Line3l 
Item ID: 1000111685 
Security guard sen>ices armed securily guard for: Army National Guard. Volunteer Training Site 609 Fitzhugh 
Blvd. Smyrna, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: H R 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 31 

Unit Price: S 12.91 



Line 32 
Item ID: 1000111686 
Security guard services armed sile manager for: Army National Guard Jackson Army Flight Facility 2254 Westover 
Rd. Jackson, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 32 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Une33 
Item ID: 1000111687 
Sealrity guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Jachon Army Flight Facility 2254 West~ 
Rd. Jackson, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 33 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Liae34 
Item 10: 1000111688 
&CIIf'ity gtllll'd services armed seaH"ity gt4Drdfor: Army National Guard Jachon Army FJight Facility 2254 
Westover Rd. JocbOtJ, TN Year 1 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 34 

Unit Price: S 12.26 

I.AtleJS 
Item ID: I 00011 J 689 
&an-ity guard services armed site manager for: Army Nationol Guard Jaclcson Army Flight Facility 2254 Westover 
Rd. Jac«son, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part #: SIDCO 35 

U•it Price: S 12.91 

Line36 
Item ID: 1 000 11 I 690 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Jacks_on Army Flight Facility 2254 Westover 
Rd. Jachon, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line37 
Item ID: 1000112942 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard Jac/cson Army Flight Facility 2254 
Westover Rd. JacJcson, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SDICO 37 

Unit Price: S 12.26 

Line38 
Item ID: 1000112943 
Security Guard services llrmttd site manager for: Army National Guard Jaclcson Army Flight Facility 1154 Westover 
Rd. Jackson, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 3& 

Unit Price:$ 12.91 



Line39 
Item ID: 1000112944 
Security guard services armed shift Jead~r for: Army National Guard Jaclcson Army Flighl Facility 2254 Westover 
Rd. Jaclcson, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part #: 

Unit Price: $ 12.91 

Line40 
Item ID: 1000112945 
&atrity guard services, armed security guard for: Army NaJional Guard Jaclcson Army Flighl Facility 2254 
Westover Rd. Jaclcson, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part tl: SIDCO 40 

Unit Price: S 12.26 

Line•U 
Item JD: 1000112946 
Seatrily Gwzrd services armed site manager for: Army National Guard Jackson Army F1ight Facility 2254 Westover 
Rd. Jachon, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SlDCO 41 

Uait Price: S 12.91 

u.e.u 
Item ID: 1000112947 
Secvrity guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Jaclcson Army Flighl Facility 2154 Westover 
Rd. Jaclcson, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Jtcm/Part #: SIDCO 42 

Uait Price: S 12.91 

Line43 
Item ID: 1000112948 
Seatrity guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard Jacbon Army Flight Facility 2254 
Westl1W!f' Rd. Jadson, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Va~dor Item/Part#: SIDCO 43 

Uait Price: S 12.26 

Line4-4 
Hem JD: I 000 112949 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Army National Guard Jackson ArfJIY Flight Facility 2254 Westover 
Rd. Jaclcson, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 44 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line 45 
Item ID: 1000112950 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Jac/c.son Army Flight Facility 2254 WestOller 
Rd. Jaclcson, TN Year 5 -
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 45 

Unit Price:$ 12.91 

; 
; .. 



Line 46 
Item ID: 1000112951 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard Jackson Army Flight Facility 2254 
Wesrover Rd. Jackson TN Year 5 
Unil of Measure: HR 
Vendor ltem/Part#: SIDCO 46 

Unit Price; S 12.26 

Line47 
Item ID: 1000112952 
Security guard suvices armed sile manager for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 21 I J Army 
Drive, Alcoa. TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 47 

Unit Price: $12.91 

Liae.f8 
Item ID: 1000112953 
Security guard st!I'Vices armed shift leader for: Anny National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 1111 Army~ 
Alcoa, TN Year 1 
Unit of Measure: HR . 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 48 

U•it Price: S 12.58 

Liee-49 
Item ID: 1000112954 
&auity guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 2111 .A,.,;,y 
Drivt!, Alcoa, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIOCO 49 

Unit Price: $12.26 

Line 50 
Item ID: 1000112955 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Army National GuOI'd Alcoa Army Flight Facility 21 I I Army 
Drive, Alcoa. TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIOCO 50 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line 51 
Item ID: 1000112956 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facilicy 2 I II Army Drive, 
Alcoa, TN Year 2 · 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 51 

Unit Price: S 12.58 

-Line 52 
Item ID: 1000 I 12957 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 2 I II Army 
Drive, Alcoa, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 52 

Unit Price: S 12.26 



Une53 
Item JD: 1000 112958 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 2111 Army_ 
Drive, Alcoa, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 53 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Une54 
Item ID: 10001 I2959 
Security guard services armed shift leoder for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Fligh/Facility 2111 Army Drive, 
Alcoa, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 54 

Unit Price: S 12.58 

UneSS 
Item ID: 1000112960 
Seatrity guard services armed sf!CUrily guard for: Army National Gtlard Alcoa Anny FlighJ Facility 2111 Army 
Driw,-Aiooa, TN Year 3 

· Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 55 

Unit Price: S 12.26 

Line 56 
Item ID: 1000112961 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Anny National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 2111 Army 
Drhle. Alcoa. TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part II: SIDCO 56 

Uait Pritt: S 12.91 

Une57 
Item ID: 1000112962 
Security guord services armed shiflleadu for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 2111 Army Drive, 
Alcoa, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 57 

Unit Price: S 12.58 

Line 58 
Item ID: 1000112963 
Security guard services armed security guard/or: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility 21 I 1 Army 
Drive, Alcoa, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part #: SIDCO 58 

Unit Price: S 12.26 

Line 59 
Item ID: 1'000112964 
Security guard services armed .file manager for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight FacUity 211 I Army 
Drive, Alcoa, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: SIDCO 59 

Unit Price: S 12.91 



Linc60 
Item ID: 1000112965 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Army National Guard Alcoa Army Flight Facility] I 1 I Army Drive, 
Alcoa, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part II: SIDCO 60 

Unit Price: S 1258 

Line 61 
Item ID: 1000001851 
SeCJJrity guard St!nlicis armed seCJJrity guard for: Army National Guard A/coo Army Fligln FDCility 2/11 Army 
Drhle, Alcoa, W Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 60 

Unit Prke: S 12.26 

Liae62 
Item ID: 1000005457 
Secwily guard Sl!r\lioes t:mrted ~mana~ for: Mcghu 1}>son Air National Guard Base, 134 Brisco Drive 
K.nas:vil/e, m Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part #f.: Z:Z.: 123 14 

Uait Price: $12.91 

Utte63 
Item ID: I 000008 146 
Set:urity guard servica armed slrift leadf!t' for: Mcghee 1}son Air National Guard Base, 134 Briseo Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 1 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part 1#: DYNAMIC 62 

Unif Price: $ 12.58 

Une64 
Item ID: 1 000009888 
SeCIIrity guard st!nlices armed seCJJrity guard for: Mcghee 'fYson Air National G11ard Base, 134 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: 1.2.:12315 

Unit Price:$ 12.26 

Line65 
Item ID: I 000009889 
SeCJJrity guard services armed site manager for: Mcghee Tyson Air National Guard Base, 134 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vend or Item/Part II: ZZ: 12316 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line 66 
Item ID: 1 00002660 I 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Mcghee Tyson Air National Guard Base, /34 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 2 -
UnitofMeasurc: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: ZZ: 12317 

Unit Price: S 12.58 



Line 67 
Item ID: I 000026602 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Mcghee Tyson Air National Guard Base, 134 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor ltem/Part #: ZZ: 12318 

Unit Price: S 12.26 

Line68 
Item 10: I 000026603 
SeCIIrity guard services armed site manager for: Mcghee Tyson Air National Guard Base, 134 Brisco Dri~. 
Knoxville. TN Year 3 · 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: ZZ:12319 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line69 
Item 10: l 000070960 
Seatrity guard services armed shifl kader for: Mghu Tyson Air National Guard Base, 134 Brisco Drive, Knoxville, 
TNYear3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: ZZ:25583 

Uait Price: $ 12..58 

Line70 
Item ID: I 000070961 
Seamty guard services armed secvrily gutlf'dfor: Mcghee Tyson Air Notional Guard Base, 134 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: ZZ:25584 

Uait Priee: $ 12.26 

Une71 
Item ID: I 000070962 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Mcghee Tyson Air Notional Guard Base, 134 Brisco Drive. 
Knoxville, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: H R 
Vendor Item/Part#: ZZ:25585 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Linen 
Item lD: I 000070963 
Security guard services armed shiflleader for: Mcghee Tyson Air National Guard Base, I 34 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: ZZ:25586 

Unit Pric:e: S 12.58 

Line 73 
Item 10: 1000111673 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Mcghee Tyson Air National Guard Base, /34 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: H R 
Vendor Item/Part#: SJDCO 19 

Unit Pric:e: S 12.26 



Line 74 
Item ID: 1000010569 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Mcghee Tyson Air National Guard Base, I 34 Brisco Drive, 
K~UJ:n~i!Je, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 73 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line 75 
Item ID: 1000011627 
Secwity guard sent ices armed shift leader for: Mcghee 'J}>son Air National Guard Base, 134 Brisco Drive, 
Knoxville, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 74 

Uait Price: S 12.58 

Litle76 
ltemlD: 100001 1629 
Secwity guard RrYioes .at'tlfd S«<lrity guard for: Mcghee Tyson Air Natiot1al Gllard Bast!. I 14 Brisco~ 
Knox:vilk. 17f Year 5 . 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor lttmt/Part #: DYNAMIC 75 

Uait Price: S 11.16 

LiH71 
Item ID: 1 0000 119&5 
Sealrity guard servicu Q/'11fed site manager for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blwi. Nashville, 
TN Year 1 
UnitofMeasure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 76 

Unit Price: S I ~.52 

Line 78 
Item ID: 1000011986 
Seatrity guard services armed shift leader for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, UO Knapp Bfvd. Nashville, 
TN Year J 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 77 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

Line79 
Item ID: 1000013237 
SeC'IIrity guard services armed security guard for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd, Nashville, 
TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 78 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line80 
Item ID: 1000129467 
Security guard sentices armed site manager for: Berry Field Air Notional Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd, Nas/nlil/e, 
TN Year2 . 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 79 

Unit Price: S 14.52 



Line 81 
Item ID: 1000129468 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd, Nashville, 
TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 80 

Unit Price: S.13.55 

Line 82 
Item ID: 1000129469 
Sealrity guard services armed security guard for: Berry Field .Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd, Nashvill~. 
TN Year] · 
Unit of Measure: HR · 
Vendorltem/Part #:DYNAMIC 81 

Uait Price: S ll.91 

Liae83 
Item 10: 1000129470 
Security pard services anned site manager for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Ktuzpp Blvd, Nashville. 
TNYeor3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 82 

Uait Price: $14.51 

u~s. 

Item JD: 1000129471 
Seatrily guard services armed shift leader jot": Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd, Nashville. 
TNYear3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor ltetD/Part #: DYNAMIC &3 

Uait Price: S 13.55 

Une·ss 
Item ID: 1000129476 
Sealrity guard services armed security guard for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd, Noshville. 
TN Year3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#; DYNAMIC 84 
Manufacturer Item #: 

Unit Pri«: S 12.91 

Line86 
Item ID: 1000129477 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, UO Knapp Blvd, Nashville, 
TN Year4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 85 

Unit Price: $ 14.52 

Line 87 
Item ID: 1000129478 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd, Nashville, 
TN Year4 
Unit ofMeasure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 86 

Unit Price: $ 13.55 



Line88 
Item ID: 1000129479 
Security guard services armed security guard/or: Berry Field Air National Guard Base, 240 Knapp Blvd. Nashville, 
TN Year4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Jtem/Parttl: DYNAMIC 87 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Une89 
Item JD: 1000129480 
Security gumd services armed site manager for: Berry Field Air National GJUJrd Base. 240 Knapp Blvd, N11ShviJ/e, 
TNYear5 
Unit ofMeasure: HR 
Vatdor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 88 

Unit Pritt: S l.C52 

U.90 
Item ID: l0001294S2 
&airily guard ~ices armed shift leader for: Berry Field Air National Gw:zrd Bau. UO KMpp Blvd, Nashville, 
TNYear5 . 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 89 

U.it Pricle: $ 13.55 

Lille'1 
llem ID: 1000129483 
&cwity gut1r'd sovices armed security guard for: Berry Field Air Nati~nal Guard Base, 140 Knapp Blvd, Nashville, 
TN Ye.r5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part##: DYNAMIC 90 

Unit Pritt: S 12.91 

Une92 
llem ID: 1000129472 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Memphis Air Notional Guard Base. 4593 Swinneo Rood, Memphis, 
TNYeDI"' I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 91 

Unit Price: S t 355 

Une93 
Item ID: 1000129473 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Memphis Air National Guard Bose, 4593 Swinneo Rood, Memphu~ 
TN Year I 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part f#: DYNAMIC 92 

Unit Price: S 13.13 

Une94 
llem 10: 1000129474 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Memphis Air National Guard Bose, 4593 Swinneo Rood. 
Memphis, TN Year 1 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 93 

Unit Price: S 12.91 



Line 95 
Item ID: 1000129475 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Memphis Air Notional Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road, Memphis, 
TN~2 . 

Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 94 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

Line 96 
Item ID: 1000129481 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Roatl, Memphis, 
TNYear2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 95 

Unit Price: S 13.23 

Une97 
Item JD: 1000129484 
Security guard services armed sec~~rity guard for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road. 
Memphis, TN Year 2 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DY ANMIC 96 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Uae98 
Item lD: 1000129485 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road. Memphis, 
TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 97 

Unit Price: S 13.55 

Line 99 
Item ID: 1000129486 
Sectuity guard services armed shift leader for: MDnphis Air National Guard Base. 4593 Swinnea Road, Memphis, 
TNYear3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#; DYNAMIC 98 

Unit Price: $ 13.23 

Une 100 
Item 10: 1000129487 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road. 
Memphis, TN Year 3 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 99 

Unit Price: S 12.91 

Line 101 
Item ID: 1000129488 
Security guard services armed site·manager for: Memphis Air Naliona/ Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road, Memphis, 
TN Year4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part II: DY ANMIC 100 

. Unit Price: S 13.55 

!. 

> 



Line 102 
Item ID: 1000129489 
Security guard sen1ices armed shift leader for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road, 
Memphis, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYANMIC 101 

Unit Price:$ 13.23 

Line 103 
Item ID: 1000129490 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road, 
Memphis, TN Year 4 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DY ANMIC I 02 

Unit Price: $ 12.91 

Line 104 
Item ID: 1000129491 
Security guard services armed site manager for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road, 
Memphis, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DY ANMIC 103 

Unit Price: $ 13.55 

Line 105 
Item ID: 1000129492 
Security guard services armed shift leader for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road, 
Memphis, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part #: DYNAMIC 104 

Unit Price: $ 13.23 

Line 106 
Item ID: 1000129493 
Security guard services armed security guard for: Memphis Air National Guard Base, 4593 Swinnea Road, 
Memphis, TN Year 5 
Unit of Measure: HR 
Vendor Item/Part#: DYNAMIC 105 

Unit Price: $ 12.91 
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~ • Industrial Securi\Y • fi~ld Operttions • F•cilltv Cleortnce Bnonch - Facility Sealrfty Clearanu ProceJOS FAQs 

Facility Clearance Process FAQs 
1. What is a fadtity? 

2. What is a facility clearance? 

3. Can a fadlity aooly for its own facility clearance? 

<4. How does a fadlity become etigibte to be considered for a classified bid or quotation? 

5. What does the factlity clearance cost the contractor? 

6. What type of security controls must be in place If a facitity Is cleared? 

7. How 1011!! does the facHity clearance remain in effect? 

8. Can the government conduct assessements of a cleared facility? 

9. Whel-e do I send anv clearance requests or inquiries? 

1. Wh.lt is ~ facility? 

The tenn facility is used within the NISP as a common designation for an operating entity consisting of a plant, 

laboratory, office, college, 111M!nity, or comtnefdal structure with associated warehouse, storaee areas, 

utilities and components, wllich are retated by function or location. lt does not refer to Gollemment 

installations. 

Sack to top 

2. What Is a f~lity cle~r~nc:e? 

A facility clearance (fCl) is an administrative detennination that, from a national sectA"ity standpoint, a 

f~dllty Is eligible for access to classified information at the same or lower classification category as the 
clearance being granted. The fCl may be granted at the Confidential, Secret, or Top Secret level. The FCL 
includes the execution of a Department of Defense Security Agreement ~form -4-41 ). Under the terms of the 
agreement, ~ Government agrees to issue the fCl and inform the contr'llctor as to the S«UUity classification 

of information to which the contractor will have access. The contractor, in t\.11\, agrees to abide by the 
security requirements set forth in the National Industrial Serurlty PrO!lram Operating Manual, commonly 

referred to as the NISPOM. 

1lack to top 

l. Clan a facility apply for Its own f~clllty cte.ance? 

No. A contractor or prospective contractor cannot app(y for its own facility dearanceJ A procuring actfvity of 

the Government, or cleared contractor in the case of Slb:ontractlng, may request the clearance when a 

definite, classified procurement need has been estabtished. 

Back to too 

<4. How does a facility become etiCible to be conslckored for a classtfied bid or quotation? 

The .same process used in the case of an unclassified proc~Xement is iiMJlved. The facility must qualify as a 

bidder to a GoYernment procurement activity or to a prime contractor or subcontractor performtna on a 

G<wemment contract. If the bid or potential stbcontract in..olves access to classified Information, the 
procuring activity or cleared prime contractor submits a request to clear the prospective bidder. Personnel 

from the facility Clearance Branch at Defense Security Service (DSS) evaluate the request and assure that the 
request is valid. Part of this validation includes confirmation that the factUty has a reputation for integrity and 

lawfiA conduct in its business dealings. further, the contractor and its key managers must not be in a 'barred­

status from participating in GoYemment contracts. 

Back to top 

5. Wh~t does the facility clearance cost the contractor? 

There ts no direct charge to the contractor for processing a facility clearance. However, the contractor is 
responsibte for security costs associated with participation in the NISP (such as classified storage containers, 

etc.). Accordingly, contractors should determine their security requirements and related costs and consider 

such costs wl\en submitting a bid. The IS Rep can assist the facility in detenninlng the necessary security 

requirements. 

Back to top 

http://www.dss.mil/isp/fac _clear/per_ sec_ clear _proc _faqs.html 2125/2016 
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6. What type of security controls must be in place if a facility is cleared? 

The NISPOM prescribes the minimum secl.l'ity requirements that must be fulfilled by cleared contractors. The 

IS Rep can provide guidance to the contractor in implementing these requirements in their fadlity. The 

implementation of these requirements will ensure the adequate safeguarding of the classified Information 

Involved. In some cases, G~ment agendes have requirements for additional safeguards. For example, if 

your contract requires you to institute a Special Access Program, additional controls beyond those normally 

required will be necessary. Such controls can include special clearances and investigative requirements. 

Back to too 

7. How long does the facility cll!arance remain In effect? 

The fadlity clearance remains in effect as long as the Security Agreement, 00 Form 441, is effective. This 

agr~ may be terminated by either party by thirty days notice. Generally, most facility clearances 

remain in effect as long as there is a need for the contractor to have access to classified information. 

Back to too 

a. C.n the government conduct assessments of a cleared facility? 

Penodic secl.l'ity ~nerability assessment of all cleared contractors are conducted by the assigned IS Rep to 
ensure that safeguards employed by contractorl are adequate for the protection of classified information. The 

IS Rep will determine the frequency of such formal assessment, but an assessment wfll normally be conducted 

amually. 

6acll to top 

9. Where do I $end any ciNrance requests or Inquiries? 
For all fCl request and questions please submit inquires to occ.fadlltles@dss.mtl. 

Back to top 

http://www.dss.mil/isp/fac _clear/per_ sec_ clear _proc _ faqs.html 2125/2016 
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Security Clearance Frequently Asked Questions 
Questions and answers related to US Government security clearances, including those administered under 
the National Industrial Security Program (NISP), and compiled by ClearanceJobs.com. 

General 

What is a security clearance? 

A security clearance is a determination by the United States Government that a person or company is eligible 
for access to classified information. The term "eligibility for access" means the same thing as security 
clearance and appears in some Government record systems. There are two types ofclearances: ·Personnel 
Security Clearances (Pels) and Facility Security Clearances (FCls). 

What are the security clearance levels? 

Security clearances can be issued by many United States Government agencies, including the Department of 
Defense (DoD), the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of Energy (DoE), the Department of 
Justice, and the Central Intelligence Agency. DoD, which issues more than 80% of all clearances, and most 
other agencies have three levels of security clearances: · 

• Confidential 

• Secret 

• TopSecret 

DoE primarily issues "l," and "Q" Access Authorizations, which are roughly equivalent to Secret and Top Secret 
clearances, respectively. 

What was DISCO and DOHA? 

The Defense Industrial Security Clearance Office (DISCO) was part of the Defense Security Service (DSS), an 
agency of the Department of Defense (DoD). DISCO processed and adjudicated Personnel Security Clearances 
(PCL) and Facility Security Clearances (FCl) for defense contractor personnel and defense contractor facilities. 
The Defense Office of Hearings and Appeals (DOHA) worked with DISCO and adjudicated the most problematic 
DISCO cases. Previously DISCO/DOHA was one of nine Central Adjudication Facilities (CAFs) within DoD. 

What is DoDCAF? 

In summer 2011 all nine DoD Central Adjudication Facilities relocated to a new building on Fort Meade, Md. 
Between August 2012 and January 2013 six of these CAFs (Army CCF, DoNCAF, AFCAF, JCSCAF, WHSCAF, and 
DISCO/DOHA consolidated into one DoDCAF. The new CAF will have full operational capability by September 
2013, including responsibility for Employment Suitability and HSPD-12 credentialing determinations. There has 
been no decision regarding consolidation of the remaining three CAFs (NSA, DIA, and NGA). They will continue 
to remain separate entitles while the matter is being studied. 

What type of information is requested on a security clearance application? 

The application form, Standard Form 86- SF86 (Questionnaire for National Security Positions), requires 
personal identifying data, as welt as information regarding citizenship, residence, education, and employment 
history; family and associates; and foreign connections/travel. Additionally, it asks for information about 
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criminal records, illegal drug involvement, financial delinquencies, mental health counseling, alcohol-related 
incidents and counseling, military service, prior clearances and investigations, civil court actions, misuse of 
computer systems, and subversive activities. The number of years of information required on the form varies 
from question to question-many require 7 years, some require 10 years, and others are not limited to any 
period of time. 

How long does a clearance remain in effect? 

Generally as long as cleared individuals remain employed by a cleared contractor or government agency and 
are reasonably expected to require access to classified information, their personnel security clearance will 
remain in effect, provided they comply with Periodic Reinvestigation requirements. 

When is a clearance terminated? 

A clearance is terminated when a person permanently leaves a position for which the clearance was granted. 
Cleared individuals who no longer require access to classified information, but who remain continuously 
employed by the same cleared contractor (or government agency) and do not anticipate future access can 
have their clearances administratively downgraded or withdrawn until such time that they require access 
again, provided their security clearance investigation has not expired. Under such circumstances the clearance 
can be administratively restored. 

What do the terms "active," "current," and "expired" mean? 

People either have a clearance or they don't have a clearance. The Personnel Security Investigation (PSI) on 
which the clearance is based can be either "current" or "expired." PSis are current if they are not more than 
five years old for a Top Secret clearance, 10 years old for a Secret clearance, or 15 years old for a Confidential 
clearance. Generally, if the PSI is out-of-date (expired) or there has been a break-in-service of two years or 
more, a person must be nominated for a new clearance, complete a new application, and undergo a new PSI. 
People commonly use the terms "active," "current," and "expired" to mean: 

Active-a clearance that has not been terminated. 

Current-a terminated clearance that is stilt eligible for reinstatement. 

Expired-a terminated clearance that is no longer eligible for reinstatement. 

Can a clearance be reinstated after it has been terminated? 

Yes. If a person previously had a clearance and the investigation is still current, the clearance can be 
reinstated by the agency that originally granted the clearance or it can be accepted and reciprocally granted 
by a different agency, provided there hasn't been a break-in-service of two years or more. This can be done 
without the individual submitting a new SF86; however, for clearances involving special access authorizations 
a new SF86 can be required if there has been a break-in-access of more than 60 days or if a polygraph 
examination is required. 

What is an interim security clearance? 

An interim clearance (also known as "interim eligibility") is based on the completion of minimum investigative 
requirements and granted on a temporary basis, pending the completion of the full investigative requirements 
for the final clearance. Interim Secret clearances can be granted in a few days once the clearance granting 
authority rece1ves a properly completed SF86. Interim Top Secret clearances take one or two months longer. 
Interim clearances can be "declined," if unfavorable information is listed on the SF86. All industrial applicants 
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(defense contractor personnel) are considered for interim clearances. Interim clearances can be withdrawn at 
any time significant unfavorable information is developed during the investigation. It is not possible to appeal 
the declination or withdrawal of an interim clearance, and the CAF is not required to provide a reason for the 
declination/withdrawal. Effective 1 August 2012 the term "declined" was replaced by the term "Eligibility 
Pending," which has the same effect as the declination of an interim clearance. 

With some exceptions an interim clearance permits a person to have access to classified material at all levels 
of classification up to the level of the interim clearance granted. Interim Secret clearances are not sufficient 
for access to special categories of classified information, such as COMSEC, Restricted Data, and NATO. Interim 
Top Secret clearances are sufficient for access to most Top Secret information and to COMSEC, NATO, and 
Restricted Data at the Secret and Confidential Levels only. 

Getting a Clearance 

Can I obtain a security clearance on my own? 

No. You must be sponsored by a cleared contractor or a Government agency. To be sponsored you must be 
employed (or hired as a consultant) in a position that requires a clearance. As an exception, a candidate for 
employment may be submitted for a clearance if the employer has ·made an offer of employment and the 
candidate has accepted the offer. Both the offer and acceptance must be in writing. The offer of employment 
from a cleared contractor must indicate that employment will begin within 30 days of receiving the clearance. 

Can a Naturalized Citizen get a Personnel Clearance? 

Yes. The source of US citizenship does not make a difference for security clearance eligibility. 

Can non-US citizens obtain security clearances? 

No. Non-US citizens cannot obtain a security clearance; however, they may be granted a Limited Access 
Authorization (L.AA). LAAs are grant in those rare circumstances where the non-US citizen possesses unique or 
unusual skill or expertise that is urgently needed to support a specific US Government requirement involving 
access to specified classified information (no higher than Secret}, and a cleared or clearable US citizen is not 
readily available. 

Personnel Security Clearances (PCL) 

Who issues clearances? 

The Department of Defense Central Clearance Facility (DoDCAF) at Fort Meade, Md. issues Personnel 
Clearances (PCL) for most DoD civilians, military personnel, and contractor personnel. Previously the DISCO 
issued clearances to most defense contractor personnel; however, DISCO was consolidated into DoDCAF in 
October 2012. Other DoD agencies that issue clearances are DIA, NGA, and NSA. Other Exerutive Branch 
departments that issue PCLs include the departments of Energy, State, Homeland Security, Transportation, 
Agriculture, Labor, Commerce, Treasury, Justice, Interior, Housing and Urban Development, Veterans Affairs, 
Health and Human Services, and Veterans Affairs. Many component agencies of these departments, as well as 
independent agencies (i.e. CIA, OPM, EPA, GAO, FCC, USITC, etc.), issue clearances. Clearance determinations 
are based on completed personnel security investigations (PSI) using the "Adjudicative. Guidelines for 
Determining Eligibility for Access to Classified Information." 
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How much does it cost to get a PCL? 

At this time, there is no direct charge for a PCL issued by DoD and most other federal agencies. 

What is a collateral clearance? 

The term "collateral clearance" is used to describe a security clearance without any special 
access authorizations. 

What is a "special access authorization?" 

Access to classified defense information is based on an appropriate level of security clearance 
(Confidential, Secret or Top Secret) and a "need-to-know." Need-to-know can be either a formal 
or an informal determination. All classified defense information exists within one of these two 
"need-to-know" domains-formal or informal. Information that exists within the domain of informal 
need-to-know determinations is referred to as "collateral classified" information. Information that 
requires a formal need-to-know determination (also known as a special access authorization) exists 
within Special Ac;cess Programs (SAP), including Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) and Restricted 
Data (RD). 

Acronyms such as ATOMAL, CNWDI, COMSEC, COSMIC, CRYPlO, NOFORN, ORCON, SAP, SCI, RD, SlOP-ESt, 
SPECAT, SIOP-ESI, etc., are not clearances. They are categories of classified information, some of which have 
extra need-to-know restrictions or require special access authorizations. For exampte, COSMIC stands for 
"Control of Secret Material in an International Command." COSMIC Top Secret is the term used for NATO Top 
Secret Information. There are many such markings (caveats) stamped or printed on classified material, but 
most are only acronyms denoting special administrative handling procedures. 

How can I be granted Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) access? 

Since SCI encompasses several categories of compartmented information, CAFs grant eligibility for access 
to SCI. In order to be considered for SCI eligibility, a cleared individual must first be nominated for an 
SCI billet and approved by the government agency that controls the information. Once this eligibility has 
been established, a person can be granted a special access authorization for a specific category of 
information within SCI. SCI access eligibility is divided into 3 sensitivity levels and each has a different 
investigative requirement: 

• SSBI without polygraph 

• SSBI with Counterintelligence Scope polygraph 

· • SSBI with Full Scope polygraph 

What is a Special Access Program (SAP)? 

A SAP is defined as: "a program established for a specific class of classified information that imposes 
safeguarding and access requirements that exceed those normally required for information at the same 
classification level." Technically, SCI is a SAP. Some SAPs are referred to as "black" pr(>grams, the very 
existence of which can be classified. · 

Can you get an interim eligibility for access for SCI/SAP? 

Interim access eligibility for Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) and Special Access Programs (SAP) are 
granted under very limited circumstances. 
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Clearance Process 

What are the steps to getting a Personnel Clearance (PCL)? 

For DoD clearances a cleared contractor or Government agency identifies an employee with a need to have 
access to classified information. Once identified, the contractor's Facility Security Officer (FSO) or the 
Government agency's Security Officer (SO) submits an investigation request through the Joint Personnel 
Adjudication System (JPAS) and ensures that the employee completes a clearance application in the Electronic 
Questionnaires for Investigations Processing (e-QIP). The FSO or SO then reviews, approves, and forwards the 
completed e-QlP to the DoDCAF for their approval, issuance of an interim clearance, and release to Office 
of Personnel Management (OPM). OPM conducts an investigation and sends the results of the investigation to 
DoOCAF. DoDCAF either grants a clearance or issues a letter of Intent to deny clearance. Clearances for other 
federal agencies are processed in essentially the same manner, but can involve a different Investigation Service 
Provider (ISP). · 

How are security clearance investigations carried out? 

A National Agency Check {NAC), pot ice record checks, and credit check are components of all clearance 
investigations. When possible these are done centrally by an Investigation Service Provider (ISP), like OPM. 
Some police record checks must be done locally by field investigators. For investigations requiring other record 
checks, reference interviews, and/or a Subject Interview, tasking is sent from the ISP simultaneously to field 
investigators (efther federal agents or contract investigators) in all locations involved. If the investigation 
develops information that requires further action in another location, tasking is sent from the investigator that 
developed the information to another field office. Investigative reports are electronically submitted as the 
wor1< is completed. When all reports have been received at the ISP, the case is reviewed for completeness, 
and then forwarded to the appropriate Central Adjudication Facility (CAF). 

How long does it take to process a security clearance? 

In April2012 DISCO reported average end-to-end processing time of 99 days for the fastest 90% of defense 
contractor Top Secret clearances and 52 days for Secret clearances. 

With some exceptions most federal agencies are completing the fastest 90% of all initial clearances (Secret 
and Top Secret) close to the average of 60 days as required by the 2004 Intelligence Reform and Terrorism 
Prevention Act (IRTPA). This average for the fastest 90% can include cases that take up to about 180 days. 
The remaining 10% can take from 6 months to over a year. 

Will my clearance be granted faster because I had a clearance three years ago? 

No. A new application with need to be submitted and a completely new investigation will need to be 
conducted and adjudicated. 

Will my clearance be granted faster, if I have immediate family members who have clearances? 

No. 

Why does it take .so long to get a clearance? 

Compared to a few years ago, the vast majority of clearances are now being completed much faster than 
they previously were, but some clearances continue to take a long time. For these cases part of the answer 
involves the applicant and requires a better understanding of the process. There are three phases to clearance 
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processing: 1) application initiation, 2) investigation, and 3) adjudication. In the past most clearance delays 
occurred during the investigation phase. Due primarily to a significant increase in the number of investigators, 
the average time for investigations has been significantly reduced. Today most of the delays in getting a 
clearance occur in the application initiation phase and the adjudication phase. The problems that cause these 
delays are: 

1. The applicant is not available for a Subject Interview 

2. Missing or inaccurate data on security clearance application forms 

3. Problems involving fingerprint submission 

4. Serious security/suitability issues 

5. "Queuing time" 

Problem #1 occurs during the investigation phase and is usually due to the applicant being out of the country. 
If the applicant is in a war zone, the Subject Interview is usually conducted when the applicant returns to the 
United States. There can also be substantial delays when an applicant is. in a location, such as Germany, Japan, 
Great Britain, or South Korea. 

Problems #2 and #3 occur primarily at the application initiation phase and can result in an application being 
rejected by the CAF or ISP and returned to the requestor. About 10% to 12% of all clearance applications are 
rejected. This can result in delays of 30 to 60 days. Reviews of applications at the CAF and at the ISP before 
an investigation is opened can only discover obvious errors and omissions. These reviews do not discover wrong 
addresses, telephone numbers and dates, nor do they discover omitted foreign travel, relatives, residences, 
employment or education. These errors and omissions are only discovered during the investigation phase where 
the case can also be delayed. 

Problems #4 and #5 occur primarily at the adjudication phase and can result in much longer delays. Serious 
issues may require additional information or investigation. When a CAF requests additional information or 
investigations, it can delay a case for months. A certain amount of queuing time is necessary for effident 
operations, but when there is a backlog of cases with major issues, queuing time becomes excessive. 

What can I do to speed up the process of getting a clearance? 

1. Download a printable copy of the application form (Standard Form 86-SF86) from the OPM website. 
Complete the printed copy of the SF86, before attempting to complete the electronic (e-QIP) version 
online. You will save yourself a lot of time and frustration. 

2. Provide complete and accurate information. Too often applicants fail to list short-term employment, 
residence, education, and other seemingly unimportant information. When an investigation turns up 
missing or discrepant information, it adds extra time to the investigation. Among other things, failure 
to list the organization that is sponsoring your clearance as you current employer will cause your 
application to be rejected. 

3. Postal Zip Codes are critical. A wrong Zip Code can result in part of your investigation being sent to the 
wrong investigative office, and the case could languish for days before the error is noticed. Get Zip 
Codes at https://www.usps.com/zi0;4/. 

4. Get a free credit report from www.annualcreditreport.com and review it before completing an SF86. 
Something you were unaware of may appear on the report and cause delays. 
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5. When entering the "Name of Person Who Knew You" in the Residence Section of the SF86, try to list 
neighbors. Avoid listing relatives in any section of the SF86, except Section 17-Marital Status and 
Section 18-Relatives. 

6. Don't indicate dual citizenship just because you were born in a foreign country, unless you are certain 
you have dual citizenship. Go to www.opm.gov/extra/investigate/IS-01.pdf and check the citizenship 
laws of the foreign county where you were born. If you have dual citizenship, you should indicate in the 
SF86 your willingness to renounce foreign citizenship. 

7. If you have a foreign passport due to dual citizenship, arrange with the security office processing your 
clearance to either surrender or destroy the passport. Indicate in the "Optional Comments" field of 
the e-QIP version of the SF86 that you have either surrendered the passport to the appropriate security 
officer or destroyed it in his/her presence. Obtain a written receipt or a statement from the security 
officer regarding the disposition of your foreign passport. Do not contact any foreign official regarding 
the foreign passport or citizenship, unless you are instructed to do so by a representative of the 
U.S. Government. 

8. If you had mental health or substance abuse counseling in the past 7 years, contact ttie facility where 
the counseling occurred and determine it they will accept a standard government forms for release 
of medical infonnation. If not, get a blank copy of their release and take it with you when you are 
interviewed by an investigator. 

9. If you left a job under less than favorable circumstances, explain the situation in the "Optional 
Comments" field of section of Section 22 of your e·QIP, and give the name and/or position of the person 
who terminated you or asked you to quit. 

10. Couch any unfavorable security and suitability information in terms directly applicable to the mitigating 
conditions listed in the Adjudicative Guidelines. The most recent version of the "Adjudicative 
Guidelines for Determining Eligibillty for Access to Classified Information" was issued on December 29, 
2005 and implemented in 2006. There are 13 guidelines covering such things as alcohol consumption, 
drug involvement, financial considerations, criminal conduct, etc. Each provides examples of potential 
disqualifying conditions and mitigating conditions. 

Who should I list as references on my clearance application? 

There are 4 sections of the clearance application ("Where You Have Lived," "Where You Went To School," 
"Your Employment ActMties," and "People Who Know You Well") that require names and contact information 
for people who can be interviewed as references. Unless there is no other choice, do not list any relatives 
in these sections. For your residences you should list current and former neighbors. For employment you 
should list current and former supervisors. If you believe the investigator will have trouble locating a former 
supervisor, use the "Optional Comments" field and add contact information for a former coworker or second 
tier supervisor. For schools you should list former classmates or faculty members who will remember you. 
For "People Who Know You Well" try to list at least one person who has known you for the past seven 
years and who knows who your other friends are. Try not to list the same person more than once on your 
clearance application. . 

Willi be interviewed by an investigator? 

If you are being investigated for a Top Secret clearance or for a Secret clearance that requires access 
to a designated Special Access Program (SAP), an Enhanced Subject Interview (ESI) is a regular .part of 
the investigation. ESis can also be required in an investigation for a Confidential or Secret clearance, 
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if a suitabiltty/security issue is listed on your clearance application or surfaces during the investigation. A 
Special Interview (SPIN) can be required in any investigation, if a previously undisclosed suitability/security 
issue surfaces during an investigation after an ESI was conducted. 

What will I be asked during a security clearance interview? 

During a ESI, the investigator will cover every item on your clearance application and have you confirm the · 
accuracy and completeness of the information. You will be asked about a few matters that are not on your 
application, such as the handling of protected information, susceptibility to blackmail, and sexual misconduct. 
You will be asked to provide details regarding any potential security/suitability issues. 

During a SPIN, the investigator will only cover the security/suitability issue(s) that triggered the SPIN. The 
purpose of the SPIN is to afford the applicant the opportunity to refute or to confirm and provide details 
regarding the issue(s). · 

Should I reveal unfavorable information about myself on the clearance application? 

You must answer all questions on the clearance application form truthfully and completely, but you do not 
have to volunteer unfavorable information that is not related to any of the questions on the form. Many 
clearance denials for financial problems, drugs, alcohol, and criminal conduct also involve providing false 
infonnation during the dearance process. Often the act of providing false information is more serious than 
the issues people try to hide. Passage of time is a major mitigating factor for all issues involving misconduct. 
Willfully providing false information on a clearance application or during a Subject Interview is a serious 
criminal offense and is very difficult to mitigate because of the recency of the offense. 

What are the most common errors requiring correction before the investigation is opened? 

1. fingerprints not received with required timeframe of 14 days 

2. Missing information on employment. 

3. Missing information on references (education, employment, and/or character references) 

4. Illegible Certification/Release forms 

5. Certification/Release forms not meeting date requirements 

6. Missing information on relatives 

7. Missing Selective Service registration information 

8. Incorrect date or place of birth (i.e. information on fingerprint card and Sf86 don't match) 

9. Missing financial information 

10. Missing information on cohabitant 

11. Missing information on spouse 

12. Incorrect Certification/Release form number 

13. Incorrect social security number 

How can I find out the status of my clearance application? 

For DoD clearances only your security officer may inquire about the status of your security clearance 
application. This can be done by checking the Joint Personnel Adjudication System (JPAS) and/or the Security 
and Investigations Index (SII) or by telephoning the DoD Security Service Center at 888-282-7682. 
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How will I be informed when I am granted a clearance? 

Normally you will be contacted by your security office, receive a security briefing, and required to sign a 
"Classified Information Non-disclosure Agreement," prior to be granted access to classified information. 

What types of things can prevent someone from receiving a security clearance? 

With rare exceptions the following will result in a clearance denial: 

criminal conviction resulting in incarceration for a period of one year or more 

• current unlawful use of or addiction to a controlled substance 

• determined to be mentally incompetent by a mental health professional approved by DoD 

• discharge or dismissal from the Armed Forces under dishonorable conditions 

• unwillingness to surrender a foreign passport 

Otherwise, the most common reasons for clearance denial are serious repeated financial problems, intentional 
false statements in connection with a clearance investigation, recent illegal drug involvement, repeated 
alcohol abuse, and a pattern of criminal conduct or rule violation. For many people these issues can be 
mitigated, if presented properly during a security interview or in response to a Letter of Intent to deny 
clearance. 

The 2005 "Adjudicative Guidelines for Determining Eligibility for Access to Classified Information" list various 
conditions under 13 separate guidelines that could result in clearance denial. 

What happens when a security clearance is denied? 

When a case contains significant unmitigated derogatory information, the adjudicator issues a "Letter of 
Intent" (LOI) to deny a clearance. The LOI is a preliminary, tentative decision and will contain a "Statement of 
Reasons" (SOR) detailing the issues that are the basis of the decision. The LOI contains instructions on how to 
request a copy of the investigative file on which the decision to issue the LOI was based. 

Industrial applicants (federal contractor personnel) can submit a written rebuttal to the SOR and request a 
hearing. If the applicant does not rebut the SOR, DoDCAF will deny the clearance. If the applicant rebuts 
the SOR without requesting a hearing, DoDCAF sends the applicant a File of Relevant Material (FORM) that 
will be presented to an Administrative Judge (AJ) for a clearance decision based on the written record. The 
applicant can submit a written response to the FORM, which will also be presented to the AJ. If the applicant 
requests a hearing, the applicant (with or without an attorney or personal representative) may present 
witnesses and other evidence at the hearing. The applicant may also cross-examine witnesses and challenge 
evidence presented by the DoDCAF Department Counsel (an attorney representing DoD). The AJ makes a 
written decision and a copy is sent to the applicant. DoDCAF is then directed to grant or deny the clearance in 
accordance with the AJ's decision. If the clearance is denied, the applicant is notified in writing and advised of 
their right to appeal the decision. It is possible that an adjudicator could grant the clearance after reviewing 
the applicant's response to the SOR, thus obviating the need to present the case to an AJ. 

DoD civilian employees and military personnel can submit a written rebuttal to the SOR, but they are not 
entitled to a hearing. If the applicant does not rebut the SOR, DoDCAF will deny the clearance. If they submit 
a written rebuttal to the SOR, the adjudicator will decide to grant or deny the clearance in light of information 
submitted in the rebuttal. If a decision is made to deny a clearance, the applicant is notified in writing and 
advised of their right to appeal the decision. 
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Can I appeal a clearance denial or revocation? 

Any applicant may appeal a clearance denial or revocation to the federal agency's three-member Personnel 
Security Appeals Board (PSAB). PSAB decisions are made by a majority vote. 

Industrial applicants are limited to submitting a written appeal, but the PSAB will not consider any new 
evidence. The appeal must be based on procedural error(s) by the AJ. In industrial cases the DoD Department 
Counsel can appeal the favorable decision of an AJ. The PSAB issues a written decision addressing the material 
issues raised on appeal and a copy is sent to both parties. The PSAB can affirm, reverse, or remand a case to 
the original AJ with instructions for further review. lf the original dedsion is reversed or affirmed, the decision 
of the PSAB is final. 

DoD dvilian employees and military personnel have the choice of submitting a written appeal with supporting 
documents directly to their PSAB or requesting a personal appearance before an AJ. In either case new 
evidence can be submitted. Those who choose to appear before an AJ are permitted to explain their case 
(with or without an attorney or personal representative), submit supporting documents, and present witnesses, 
but it is not a hearing and there is usually no opposing counsel. The AJ evaluates all the information and 
makes a written clearance recommendation to the_ applicant's PSAB. The PSAB is not required to follow the 
recommendation of the AJ. The PSAB notifies the applicant of their final decision and includes reasons for 
their decision. 

Applicants who are denied a clearance With or without an appeal are barred from applying for a security 
clearance for a period of one year. 

What is the EPSQ. (Electronic Personnel Security Questionnaire)? 

The EPSQ was the only electronic security clearance application used within the DoD until July 2005, when it 
was gradually replaced by e-QIP. 

What fs e-QIP (Electronic Questionnaire for Investigations Processing)? 

E-QIP is an Office of Personnel Management (OPM) web-based computer program in which an applicant 
enters the same information as required on the "Questionnaire for National Security Positions" (Standard 
Form 86-SF86). E-QIP became available in July 2005 and slowly replaced the EPSQ. E·QIP now accounts for 
over 95% of all clearance applications. 

What is. JPAS (Joint Personnel Adjudication System)? 

JPAS is the offidal personnel security clearance database management system for DoD, including National 
Industrial Security Program (NISP) cleared contractors. This system is used for all types of personnel clearance 
actions, including initiating requests for clearance investigations. JPAS is managed by the Defense Manpower 
Data Center (DMDC). For more information, visit the DMDC website. 

How can I get a copy of my clearance investigation? 

First you must determine who conducted your investigation. The Defense Security Service (DSS) and the Office 
of Personnel Management (OPM) have conducted more than 90% of all clearance investigations over the past 35 
years. Additionally, due to the transfer of the DoD personnel security investigations function from DSS to OPM 
on February 20, 2005, any requests for DSS investigations completed after February 20, 2005 should be sent to 
the OPM. DSS only maintains those personnel security investigations completed by DSS prior to the February 
20, 2005 transfer. 
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For OPM investigations mail or fax a request with your hand written signature to: 

FOI/P, OPM-FIPC 
P.O. Box 618 
1137 Branchton Road 
Boyers, ~1601840618 

FAX: n4-794-4590 

Include the following information in your request: 

• Full name 

• Social Security Number 

• Date of birth 

• Place of birth 

• Current home address (a Post Office Box is not acceptable; the records are sent by certified mail 
and require your signature) 

For DSS investigations mail a written request with your original notarized signature to: 

Defense Security Service (DSS) 
Office of FOIA and Privacy 
27130 Telegraph Rd. 
Quantico, VA 22134 

Include the following information in your request: 

• Full current name 

• Any other names you may have used in the past 

• Date of Birth 

• Sodal Security Number 

• A brief description of the records you are seeking 

• Any other information that you feel may help in searching for records pertaining to you 

Polygraphs 

What are polygraphs? 

Polygraphs are instruments that measure physiological responses (respiration, pulse, blood pressure, and 
galvanic resistance) to stress. Polygraphs are used to help determine an individual's eligibility for a special 
assignment or access to specifically designated information protected within SAPs. They are not generally 
use for collateral security clearances, unless they are necessary to resolve serious credible derogatory 
information that cannot be resolved through conventional investigative means. Polygraph examinations are 
conducted as a supplement to, not as a substitute for, other forms of investigation that may be required under 
the circumstances. Polygraphs exams are only administered by agencies with approved personnel security 
polygraph programs and these exams are only conducted by government trained and certified examiners. 
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What are the differences between Counterintelligence, Lifestyle, and full Scope Polygraphs? 

Within the context of security clearances, the purpose of a polygraph exam is to assist in determining whether 
or not an applicant can be trusted with sensitive information. Within DoD, polygraph screening exams used 
to determine initial eligibility for special assignment or special access are limited to two types of polygraph 
exams, and either one or both exams may be administered. 

A Counterintelligence Polygraph is the most common type of polygraph exam. A Counterintelligence Polygraph 
asks the candidate questions limited to those necessary to determine whether the examinee ever had any 
involvement with or knowledge of: 

• Espionage 

• Sabotage 

• Terrorist Activities 

• Deliberate damage of U.s: Government 'Information Systems 

• Intentional compromise of U.S. Government Classified Information 

• Secret contact with a foreign national or representative 

A lifestyle Polygraph asks the candidate questions concerning their personal life and conduct and can 
involve all aspects of present and past behavior. Questions asked might concern drug and alcohol use, sexual 
misconduct, menta( health, family relationships, compulsive or addictive behavior, and more. A Lifestyle 
Polygraph can also attempt to look for issues in a person's private life for which he or she might be susceptible 
to blackmail or coercion. DoD lifestyle Polygraph exam questions cover the following topics. 

• Involvement in a serious crime 

• Personal involvement with illegal drugs during the last seven years 

• Deliberate falsification of the security forms 

• A Full Scope Polygraph exam is a combination of both the Counterintelligence and Lifestyle polygraphs 

Types of Investigations 

NACLC (National Agency Check with Local Agency Checks and Credit Check) 

An NACLC is the type of investigation required for a Secret or Confidential clearance for military and 
contractor personnel. It includes a credit bureau report and a review of records held by federal agencies 
and by local criminal justice agencies. It generally does not require an interview with an investigator. The 
investigation routinely covers no more than the past seven years of a person's life or a shorter period if the 
applicant is less than 25 years old. 

ANACI (Access NationafAgency Check with Inquiries) 

An ANACI is an investigation required for a Secret or Confidential clearance for new federal employees. It is 
a combination of the National Agency Check with Inquiries (NACI} used for federal employment suitability and 
the NACLC. It includes all the components of an NACLC plus written inquires to past and present employers, 
schools, and references covering the past 5 years. 
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SSBI (Single Scope Background Investigation) 

An SSBI is a more detailed investigation than the NACLC and is required for a Top Secret clearance, for 
Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) access, and for designated Special Access Programs (SAP) at 
the Secret level. It includes an NACLC, an Enhanced Subject Interview (ESl), interviews of former spouses; 
interviews of character, employment, neighborhood, and educational references; reviews of residence, 
employment, and academic records. The investigation routinely covers no more than the past 10 years 
of a person's life or a shorter period if the applicant is less than 28 years old. 

SSBI-PR (Single Scope Background Investigation-Periodic Reinvestigation) 

An SSBl-PR includes an NACLC, ESl, references interviews, and record reviews, covering at least the past 
five years. 

PPR (Phased Periodic Reinvestigation) 

In September 2005 OPM made the PPR available as a less comprehensive and less expensive alternative to the 
SSBI-PR. The investigation includes an NACLC, ESI, and limited reference interviews and record reviews. PPRs 
may not be requested when certain questions on the clearance application contain responses indicating a 
possible security or suitability issue. 

Interval d Periodic Reinvestigations 

People with security clearances must be routinely reinvestigated at set intervals based on the level of 
clearance they possess. A PR is done to ensure that cleared personnel are still suitable for access to classified 
fnfonnation. The type of reinvestigation and frequency required depend on the level of clearance: 

• Top Secret requires an SSBI-PR or PPR every 5 years 

• Secret requires an NACLC every 10 years 

• Confidential requires an NACLC every 15 years 

In the near future the interval of PRs for Confidential and Secret clearance will change to 5 years. There is 
a plan to change the PR interval for Top Secret clearances to 1 year by December 2013. 

Reimbursable Suitability Investigation (RSI) 

The RSI consists of a focused investigation to provide additional specific information to resolve developed 
issue(s) that fall outside the scope of coverage of other investigative products offered by the Office of 
Personnel Management (OPM). 

Trustworthiness Investigation 

A trustworthiness investigation is a DoD term used for-a background investigation for a person who is 
nominated for non-critical sensitive or critical sensitive national security position that does not involve 
access to classified information. Non-critical sensitive positions require the same investigation and 
reinvestigation required for a Secret clearance and critical sensitive positions require the same investigation 
and reinvestigation required for a Top Secret clearance. · 

Suitability Investigation 

Suitability investigations are conducted on all new federal employees, either immediately before or shortly 
after they are hired. They are also conducted on federal contractor personnel being considered for "Public 
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Trust" positions or a "Personal Identity Verification" (PIV) card required by Homeland Security Presidential 
Directive 12 (HSPD-12). Within DoD a PIV is called a Common Access Card (CAC). 

When based on the submission of an SF86 (Questionnaire For National Security Positions) rather than an SF85P 
(Questionnaire For Public Trust Positions), some suitability investigations are used to determine eligibility for 
both a Public Trust position and a Secret clearance. 

Facility Security Clearances (FCL) 

What is the National Industrial Security Program (NISP)? 

The NISP is the industrial security program that governs the contractual security obligations of DoD contractors 
and contractors of 23 other federal agencies. The Defense Security Service (OSS) has primary respoos1bility for 
monitoring NISP compliance. All NISP requirements are contained in the National Industrial Security Program 
Operating Manual (NISPOM) and NISPOM supplements. 

How does a company get a fadlity clearance (FCL)? 

A company must be sponsored for an FCL by a federal agency or a cleared contractor. A company cannot 
sponsor itsetf for an FCL. The deared contract or federal agency requests the FCL when a definite, d.assified 
procurement need has been established. 

How does a cleared contractor sponsor a company for a FCL? 

Sponsorship is in the form of a letter to the Facility Clearance Branch of the Defense Security Service, 
requesting that a particular company be processed. The letter provides the prospective company's name, 
address, phone number and point of contact. It should also provide the contract number for the classified 
procurement, a copy of the Contract Security Classification Specification, facility clearance level needed and 
the requestor point of contact and phone number. 

What is a DoD Security Agreement (DD Form 441 )? 

A DO Form 441 is required for an FCL lt is an agreement between the Government and the contractor. The 
the Government agrees to issue the FCL and inform the contractor of the security classification of information 
to which the contractor will have access, and the contractor agrees to abide by the security requirements set 
forth in the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual (NISPOM). 

What is a Contract Security Classification Spedficatfon (DO Form 254), and how does it relate to a FCL? 

A DO Form 254 is issued when classified work is contracted to a facility. It provides the security classification 
and safeguarding requirements to be applied to information. The federal agency or cleared contractor 
issues the 254 to the contracted facility and justifies the need for a FCL. One or more active DO Form 
254 is necessary to maintain an active FCL. The DD Form 254 will determine the level of the FCL granted 
to the company. A company's FCllevel must be as high as the highest classification specified in any of its 
DD Forms 254. 

What is a DSS Industrial Security Representative (IS Rep.)? 

Once sponsored for a FCL, contractors are assigned an IS Rep (a DSS employee). The IS Rep's job is to assist the 
contractor in following the requirements of the NISPOM the entire time it is a NISP participant. -
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What is a DSS inspection/review? 

ADSS review is a periodic visit to the contractor facility by a DSS IS Rep. The review is conducted to assist 
the contractor in following the requirements of the NISPOM and ensure that safeguards employed by the 
contractor are adequate for the protection of classified information. The IS Rep determines the frequency 
of such format reviews, but reviews are normally conducted annually. 

Who has to be cleared in connection with a FCL? 

A DSS Industrial Security Representative (IS Rep) with the help of the company's POC will determine which 
individuals must be cleared in connection with the FCL. Ordinarily, those who have control over the company 
(e.g., owners, officers, directors, and executive personnel) and the facility Security Officer (FSO) must be 
cleared. Those individuals cleared in connection with a FCL are called Key Management Personnel (KMP). 

What happens if a "controlling" officer cannot be cleared in connection with the FCL? 

The facility is not eligible for a FCL. The National Industrial Security .,Program Operating Manual (NISPOM) has 
provisions for "excluding" certain KMP (but not the senior magagement official or FSO), if they are unable 
to obtain a clearance. Under this provision there must be a resolution by the company's executive body 
(e.g., Board of Directors) that the named individual wilt not be provided any classified information, can be 
effectively excluded from access to all classified information, and is not in a position to adversely affect 
the performance of the classified contract. Alternatively, the officer can officially step down from his or her 
position as an officer/director and relinquish control of the facility. · 

What is a Facility Security Officer (FSO)? 

The FSO is a KMP who has responsibility over the facility's security program. During the time a facility is 
cleared, the FSO is the main POC for the DSS IS Rep. 

Does the FSO have to have a personnel clearance? What level? 

Yes. The FSO must have a clearance at the same level as the FCL. 

How does a company get a Top Secret FCL? 

A company must be sponsored for a Top Secret FCL, even if it already has a lower level FCL. The cleared 
contractor or federal agency must follow the same sponsorship procedures, and personnel clearances for all 
KMPs must be upgraded as well. 

How much does it cost to get a FCL? 

At this time, there is no direct charge for a FCL issued by the Defense Security Service. 

What is FOCI (Foreign Ownership, Control or Influence)? 

A contractor is determined as having FOCI when under such a level of foreign control or influence that it 
cannot be cleared without u ncgution method. DSS assists the contractor in selecting a negation method; 
however, some levels of FOCI cannot be negated and the contractor is determined ineligible for an FCL. 

What are SCIFs and SAPFs? 

A SCIF (Sensitive Compartmented Information Facility) and a SAPF (Special Access Program Facility) are 
specially constructed facilities to safeguard SCI and SAP information. 
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Who inspects SCIFs and SAPFs? 

DSS is responsible for inspections of these facilities, unless they have been specifically "carved out" of the NISP 
by the Government customer. In such cases the Government customer who approved the facility and owns the 
information inspects the facility. 

Security Clearance Jobs 

Where can I search for jobs that require a security clearance? 

Candidates with active clearances can search for jobs that make use of that clearance at ClearanceJobs.com 
(http://www.ClearanceJobs.com). 

If I don't have a security clearance, where can I find job opportunities that don't require a clearance? 

Candidates without clearances can search for jobs that do not require clearances at other internet-based 
career sites like Dice.com (for IT candidates), Rigzone.com (oil&: gas professions), HealthCallings.com 
(healthcare professions), and efinanciatcareers.com (finance professions). 

Security Clearance Processing 

How can I better understand the course of events that have shaped the personnel security 
clearance process? 

The history is fairly long and complicated. However, certain specific events give a clear understanding of how 
the security clearance process has evolved since 1972, and the difficulties the US Government has faced. 

It's important to recognize that federal security clearance processing does not exist within a single monolithic 
structure with one agency conducting investigations and one agency making clearance decisions. There are 
dozens of federal agencies that process clearances. All agencies use the same basic procedures and standards 
for granting or denying clearances, but many agencies use their own resources to make clearance decisions. 
Most agencies use the Office of Personnel Management (OPM) as their Investigation Service Provider (ISP), 
but many agencies have statutory or delegated authority to use other ISPs or their own internal investigative 
personnel. Consequently there are significant differences in the time it takes to complete a security clearance. 

About 87% of all Personnel Security Investigations (PSis) are conducted on DoD personnel (federal employees, 
military, and contractors). The next largest are DHS (including its component agencies) at about 3% and DoE 
at about 1.2%. Each of the other agencies processes only a fraction of 1% of the 850,000 PSis conducted 
each year. Because the DoD personnel security program dwarfs the combined size of all other federal agency 
programs, it's necessary to focus on DoD when discussing security clearance processing. 

In 19n the responsibility for Army, Navy, Air Force, and DoD contractor PSis was transferred to the newly 
created Defense Investigative Service (DIS). A DoD Personnel Security Working Group (PSWG) published a report 
In April1975 documenting the lack of standardization throughout the personnel security program. The PSWG 
reported that adjudications for collateral clearances were being performed in several thousand locations 
across DoD and repeated criticized the inconsistencies in adjudicative decisions. It also recommended that the 
number of different types of PSis be reduced. Many of the PSWG's recommendations were implemented during 
the 1970's and 1980's, including the consolidation of several thousand adjudicative offices into 18 DoD Central 
Adjudication Facilities (CAFs). In December 1979 DoD Directive 5200.2, Personnel Security Program, and its 
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implementing regulation, DoD 5200.2-R were issue, and for the first time,. most of the elements of personnel 
security were standardized throughout DoD. In 1981 the first formal Adjudicative Guidelines were established 
and incorporated into DoD 5200.2-R. 

From its inception DIS was understaffed and had 48,000 pending cases (twice its optimum workload), many 
of which were overdue. From 1974 to 1985 its workload increased over 58% with 17% fewer investigators than 
the military had to do the job prior to 1972. A General Accounting Office (GAO) report in 1981 estimated 
that delays for initial clearances were costing the Government $920 million a year in lost productivity. That 
same year DIS imposed a moratorium on conducting Periodic Reinvestigations (PRs) for clearances involving 
access to Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI), in order to deal with a large backlog of requests for 
initial investigations. In 1983 it resumed these PRs and also began conducting PRs for collateral Top Secret 
clearances. In 1985 the "Stillwell Commission" report recommendations resulted in additional funding for DIS 
and PRs for Secret clearances. DIS had about 850 field investigators at the time and began adding additional 
personnel. In 1991 it reached a high point of about 3,100 investigative personnel, including 2,400 field 
investigators. However, in anticipation of a reduction in security clearance requests because of the "peace 
dividend" resulting from the end of the Cold War, a hiring freeze was imposed. A 48% reduction-in-force 
occurred over the following 3 years and left DIS with about 1,600 investigative personnel of which 1,250 were 
field investigators. 

During a second reform effort in the 1990's, the number of DoD CAFs was further reduced from 18 to 8, and 
the types of PSis were reduced to 3. The Single Scope Background Investigation (SSBI) increased the amount 
of investigative work required for Top Secret clearances, and a "neighborhood investigation" component 
was added to the SSBI-PR. With only half the investigative personnel it previously had, DIS was forced to 
implement a quota system for PRs, restricting the number of requests defense agendes were allowed to 
submit. Nevertheless the backlog of cases at DIS began to grow. In 1998 the new investigative standards 
required by Executive Order 12968 were issued. The implementation of these standards immediately resulted 
in a "backlog" of 400,000 PRs, most of which were required by the new standards but not yet submitted to the 
Defense Security Service (DSS), which had changed its name from DIS 2 years eartier. 

In 2000 DoD began shifting a large portion of security clearance investigations from DSS to the Office 
of Personnel Management (OPM). OPM was previously responsible for conducting federal employment 
suitability investigations (including those for DoD), as well as a relatively small number of security clearance 
investigations for other federal agendes. In 1996 OPM disestablished its Office of Federal Investigations and 
privatized the field portion of that organization through the creation of the US Investigations Services (USIS) 
under an Employee Stock OWnership Plan (ESOP). USIS was awarded a 3-year non-competitive contract to 
conduct investigations for OPM. 

Foreshadowing the requirements of the Intelligence Reform and Terrorism Prevention Act (IRTPA), the 2004 
Defense Authorization Bill directed DoD to begin submitting almost all of its security clearance investigations 
to OPM in early 2004, and DSS investigators began conducting those investigations under OPM control. 
According to a 2004 GAO report, DSS and OPM had a combined investigative staff of 4,200 government and 
contractor personnel. OPM estimated that about 8,000 were needed. The average turnaround time for an SSBI 
hit a high of about 396 days. 

In December 2004 the IRTPA became law. It required that, to the extent possible, all executive branch security 
clearance investigations be conducted by one agency. It also required that 90% of all security clearances be 
completed in an average of 60 days by December 2009. In January 2005 GAO designated the DoD Personnel 
Security Program as a high-risk program. In March 2005 1,600 federal investigative personnel officially 
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transferred from DSS to OPM. By the end of 2005 the Federal Investigative Services Division of OPM increased 
its combined contractor and federal work force to about 8,000, including 6,500 field personnel. By 2008 OPM 
investigative staff reached a high of 9,421 personnel, but has declined somewhat since then. Unlike DSS, which 
was an appropriated fund activity, OPM conducts investigations on a fee-for-service basis and has the authority 
to set the prices it charges other Government agencies for the investigations they request. The combination of 
being paid for the investigations it conducted and using contract investigators to do the majority of the work 
afforded OPM the flexibility to rapidly adapt to changes in the number and type of investigations it conducted. 
Gradually the backlog of cases and the average turnaround time for investigations began to decline. 

In early 2007 the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), the Office of the Director of National Intelligence 
(ODNI), OPM and DoD created a Joint Security and Suitability Reform Team (JSSRT) to completely revamp 
and unify the process. The JSSRT issued its initial report in April 2008 outlining a general framework for near 
and long term goals to modernize and streamline security clearance, employment suitability, and access to 
federally-controlled facilities and information systems government-wide. In December 2008 the JSSRT issue a 
progress report detailing the changes it initiated and planned to implement over an 18 month period. Some of 
these changes were implemented on schedule, some were delayed, modified, or partially implemented, and 
new changes were added. Full implementation of all the original or modified changes w1ll probably not occur 
until2014. 

The most notable events that have occurred since 2008 are: 

Aug 2009 Secure Web Fingerprint Transmission (SWFT), a web-enabled biometric system, became 
available to defense contractors to transmit electronic fingerprints to OPM for security 
clearance applicants. Federal contractors will be required to submit all fingerprints via 
SWFT by December 2013. 

Apr 2010 The Case Adjudication Tracking System (CATS) became operational at all major DoO Central 
Adjudication Facilities. This enabled the electronic transfer of completed investigations 
from OPM and conversion of these files to a machine readable format. It resulted in reducing 
the transfer time by 50% and permitting electronic adjudication (eAdjudication) of 
about 25% of Secret clearance investigations. 

Jul2010 The Defense Central Index of Investigations (OCII) was transferred from DSS to the Defense 
Manpower Data Center (DMOC). This completed the transfer of DoD Personnel Security 
IT Systems from DSS to DMOC. Previously the Joint Personnel Adjudication System (JPAS), 
the Secure Web Fingerprint Transmission (SWFT), and the improved Investigative Records 
Repository (iiRR) were transferred from DSS to DMDC. These systems will eventually be 
integrated into the Defense Information Systems for Security (DlSS) along with the Industrial 
Security Facility Database (ISFD) and Educational Network Registration and On-Line learning 
(ENROL). DISS also provides Automated Records Check (ARC) and eAdjudication functionality 
and is the single point of entry for DoD personnel security. 

· Oct 2010 The Enhanced Subject Interview (ESI) replaced the Personal Subject Interview (PRSI) as 
a standard component of all Single Scope Background Investigations (SSBis), Background 
Investigations (Bis), and Moderate Risk Background Investigations (MBis). It also partially 
replaced the Special Interview (SPIN) required on investigations for Secret clearances when 
an interview of an applicant is needed to resolve unfavorable information. 
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Oct 2010 OPM eliminated the Limited Investigation (Ll), the Periodic Reinvestigation-Residence 
(PRI-R), and the Public Trust Special Background Investigation (PTSBI), which had previously 
been used for Public Trust positions. 

Feb 2011 The Government Accountability Office (GAO) reported removal of the Department of 
Defense (DOD) Personnel Security Program from its list of High Risk Programs, because 
of improvements to the program since it was first placed on the list in 2005. 

Sep 2011 December 2010 version of the SF86 (Questionnaire for National Security Positions) was 
fully implemented. 

Dec 2011 Title 5 Code of Federal Regulations Part 731 (5.CFR 731), "Suitability," was changed to 
require Periodic Reinvestigations (PRs) on all "covered" Public Trust positions at 5-year 
intervals. PRs were previously not required by 5 CFR 731. 

Aug 2012 Six DoD Central Adjudication Facilities (CAFs) began consolidating into a single a CAF. The 
consolidation is expected to be completed by January 2013. By September 2013 the new 
DoOCAF is expected to expand its responsibilities to adjudicating federal employment 
suitability and Homeland Security Presidential Directive 12 credenttaling detenninations. 
The 3 other DoD CAFs (National Security Agency, Defense Intelligence Agency, and National 
Geospatiallntelligence Agency) are not included in the consolidation. 

Overall the Government has met the IRTPA timeliness requirement to complete 90% of initial clearances in 
an average of 60 days, but major problems involving reciprocity of security clearances still exist and a single 
integrated database of all security clearances has not been created. OPM has significantly reduced the time it 
takes to conduct investigations, but the quality of investigations has declined and increased the time required 
to adjudicate problematic cases. 

In 2013 the interval for Periodic Reinvestigations (PRs) for Confidential and Secret clearances will be shortened 
to 5 years, and in 2014 PRs for Top Secret clearances will be conducted annually. The scope of an investigation 
for a Top Secret clearance will change significantly. There will be a greater reliance on a combination of 
commercial and government database searches and a reduction in the number and type of interviews and 
record checks conducted by field Investigators. 
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UNITED STATES OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT 

Federal Investigations Notice 

Notice No.14~6 Date: September 29, 2014 

Subject: Special Agreement Check and Reimbursable Su.itability/Security Investigation 
Billing Rates Effective October 1, 2014 

The Office of Personnel Management's Federal Investigative Services (OPM-FIS) will continue 
to offer Special Agreement Checks (SACs) and Reimbursable Suitability/Security Investigation 
(RSI) products in FY 2015. OPM-FIS has adjusted prices to recoup the increased costs of two 
services. The FBI has increased its Investigations Files product fee (and linked services) by $4. 
Additionally, the Enhanced Subject Inteiview (ESI) product fee has increased to $663. All other 
fees remain the same and a description and price of each of these products is provided in this 
notice. The prices are effective beginning October I. 2014. 

SACs are single or multiple record checks that do not constitute a complete investigation. The 
basic processing fee for all SACs remains at $9. For information about how SACs can assl.st in 
fulfilling your agency mission-related objectives, we encourage you to contact your OPM-FIS 
Agency Liaison at 724-794-5612. 

RSis are conductod by request of the adjudicating agency when additional work is needed that 
falls outside the scope or coverage requirements of an investigative product 

To initiate an RSI. an authorized contact from the agency's security office must submit a letter or 
memo to OPM-FIS Investigative Interface. RSI/Reopen Quality Review. Requests may be 
submitted on the FIPC 553 (Reopen/RSI Request Form) which can be found on the OPM-FIS 
website at Ylww.opm.gov/investigations. Please include a clear description of the work 
requested in the RSI as well as the subject's current location and phone number. Requests can be 
faxed to 724-738-0178, sent via the OPM Secure Portal (RSI, and Reopens), or mailed to: 

OPM-FIS 
ATIN: Investigative Interface; RSIIR.eopen Quality Review 
PO Box 618 
1137 Branchton Road 
Boyers, PA 16018-0618 

The cost of the RSI varies depending on the work requested. Priority service is available at an 
additional cost but should be limited to urgent situations. The processing fee remains at $51 for 
Standard (SID) service and $60 for Priority (PRT) service. 

To obtain additional information about your invoice, please contact the OPM-FIS Billing 
Oversight Team at 724-794-5612 extension 4490, or via email: 
FISBillingOversightTeamm)opm.gov. 

www.usajob~.gov· 



Please note that many of the National Agency Check (NAq items available for the RSI are also 
available in the SAC product. When only NAC items are needed, the SAC may be a more cost­
effective option. 

If a code is not listed for a needed item, please contact your OPM-FIS Agency Liaison to 
schedule a special request · 
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Merton W. Miller 
Associate Director 
Federal Investigative Services 

OPM-FIS, ExtctDal Liaison. 724-794-5612 
736. lnvestigatioos 
SOls/SONs 
September 30, 2015, unless superacdcd 
Special Agreement aod Reimbursable Suitability/Security Investigations Billing 
Rates Effective October 1, 2014 
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SPECIAL AGREEMENT CHECK AND REIMBURSABLE 
SUITABILITY/SECURITY INVESTIGATION BILLING RATES- EFFECTIVE 

OCTOBER I, 2014 

Section 1: BASIC PROCESSING FEES 

Special Acreement Cb«k (SAq 
$9 Basic rate for all SAC (additional charges lisCcd below based on coverage .n 

Reimbunable Saitabllity/Secarity Ia.vestigation (RSI) PRT I SID 
Basic rate for aJ1 RSI (additional charges~ below based on co~e .n $60 $51 

Section 2: SAC/RSI CODES & FEES 

Th fill .. e o owmg 1tems can be ested both :requc on SAC andRS I products. The fee does not include the basic fee. 

SACIRSI 
TYPE FEE CODE 

A 
Security/Suit.lbility Investigations Inda (SII): Chock of investigations conducted by OPM or otbcl-

$5 Fedcml" . . . 
FBI Filligdl*iat Classi6catioo (FBIFIFBFN): Faar:eqxiut-bascd seas:cll of FBI CrimiDal Files 

B ( crimmal history) $14.50 

c FBI lnv Fak:s (FBIN): N~ search of FBI investigative files. $23 
D Dcfc::ase Cc:otnllocb: of InvestigaUons (DCII): Olcck of investigations cooductcd by DoD c:otities $11 
E NaUoaal Cmfit Chock (CRED): Searda of aatioaa1 credit bureaus $10 
F Selective Service: Oleck (SESE): Vc:rificatioo ofSdoctive Service R 

. . 
$4 

G Military Persoonel Records Chcclc (MILR): Review of subject's military records $16 

H 
Inve~e AgCDCies (INV A): Retrieval of"Od:ler" agency investigation (as recorded via OFI 79 

$8 Notification in OPM's SII): 

I 
Citizen and Immigration Services Check (IMM): To confirm legal residency or aaturalization status 
of subject Also available for subject's spouse, cohabitant. and immediate family member (SIMM). $6 

(letter 1) There can be multiple searches. and the charge is per search. 
N Bureau of Vital Statistics (BVS}: Vc:rifica6on of birth record information at listed State of Birth $21 

Spouse/Cohabiwlt Natiooal Ageacy Chock (NAC) (In accordance with Executive Order 12968 for 

s Top Sccret/Q accc:ss): Olc:ck. of A. B•, C. and D $41.25 
Foreign Born Spouse/Cohabitant NAC: Chock of A. B•, C, D, and I $47.25 
•.A reduced ra~ of $2.25 is charged for the B item. 

u Periodicals (PERI): Online check of conunen:ial databases for material related to subject $7 

National Crime Information Center/Interstate Identification Index (NCIC/III) Security Clearance 
X Information Act (SCIA} only: A name check of the NCIC/III database for agencies who are under $6 

SCIA authority and have special agreements with OPM 
State Criminal History Repository (SCHR) search: A SS OPM processing fee per search will be 
added to your bill (indicated by an "AD" bill event on the invoice). Also, for each SCHR. an $5 +Varying 

8 additional user fee charged by each state will be applied (sho-ws as an "AE" bill event on the invoice). State Fee for 
(withB•) Some states may charge for each name search conducted. For a current listing of state fees, please each search 

contact OPM-FIS Billing Oversight 
*Must be ordered in addition tiJ SAC code B. Fees for SAC code B will apply. 



FIN 14-06 Attachment 

Section 3: SAC-ONLY CODES & FEES 

Th £11 . I b e o owmg ttems can only e request ed SAC od on pr:; ucts. Th fi • e ee mcludes the basic SAC processing fee. 

SAC 
TYPE 

CODE FEE 

Eledronk FingerpriDt-Ouly Spedal Agreement Ckedc. (SAq 
The elcCtrooic fingc:zprints are those submitted eleqroolc:aily via UveScan or CardScan 1ecbnology to the OPM-FIS FiDgc:lprint 
Transaction System (Frs) via submission of SF 87.1FD 258 oaly: 

Fingerprint only SAC for Federal applicants, employees, contractor, militacy personnel, or non-
Federal personnel {for regulatory putposes). Note: c;:osts sbown include FBI uac:r fcc ($14.SO) and $21.50 

B the basic SAC p• • fee ofS9 is roduced to $7. 
Fee for fingerprint only SAC for certain criminal justice positions that are exempt from the FBI user 

$7 fee (Sl-1.50). For more dc:Wls, please contact your OPM-FIS A#:DJ;y Liaison. 
Periodk Assess.aent Special Aueellleat Clacd (P A SAC) 

The PA SAC includes cbccb of the NCICIIII, FinancW Crimes Enforcement Netwodc (FNCN), 

3 
credit bureaus, aod OPM~·s Sll. Tbe PA SAC is oaly available to ageacies Yrho have exccueod a 

$40 
spccial~gJu:meat with OPM-FI.S . . lDcloclcs SAC item oodes A. E. X. the basic proces8ing fee of$9, 
and a Finaocial Crimes Enforcement Network (FNCN) item ($ 10). . 

FaD bask Natioaal .a.---· Clacd (NAC) 

R 
Full basic NAC items scbcdulod fiolll OF186C. lucludes SAC item oodes A. B, C, D, md H. aod the S70.SO basic fccof$9. 

If a fingerprint SAC is submitted in advance of the higher level investigation, a acdit may be applied to the 
higher level case in the amount of the initial fingerprint SAC. To rcocive this a-edit, the rcqucstcr must 
adhere to the following criteria: 

1) Submit the fingerprint SAC at least 1 day. but no greater than 120 days, in advance of1he higher 
level investigation, and 

2) Include FIPC Code "P' (letter i) on the higher level investigation. 

.As an alternative option, Advanced Fmgerprint Results can also be requested on higher level investigations. 
This will generate priority processing of' your fingerprint request and trigger an Advanced Fingeqxint RqJOtt 
to be generated the day after oompleti.on of the criminal history check. For additional details on Advanced 
:Fingerprint Results, see the CUITCDt Federal Investigations Notice on Investigations Reimbursable Billing 
Rates. 
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Section 4: RSI-ONL Y CODES & FEES 

Th fi 11 nlbe e o owmg 1tems can o ly reque sted RS on I products. Th e Fee does not include the b asic RSI processing fee. 

RSI 
TYPE CODE 

0 
Basic Record Check with No Known Issues: Consists of a record/file review when there are no 

(zero) 
known issues. Note: when possible, a "bulle" record check (RSI Code 1) will be conducted for 
statewide law items at a cost of$21 (or $25 for priority service) iDstead of the basic record chcclc. 

2 
Record Search for Known Issues: Consists of a record/file review when there are record(s) to be 
reviewed in oonncction with known issues 

4 
Personal Source for Coverage (No Known Issues): An investigative contact, in person, with a 
Personal Source for coverage (no known specific issue to be resolved) 

5 
Personal Source to Address Known Issues: An investigative contact, in person, with a Personal 
Source targeted to obtain specific information or resolve a specific known issue 
Subject Contact An investigative contact, in person. with the subject of investigation for purposes 

6 other than a confrontational interview, such as obtaining a signed release, obtaining lead information. 
etc. 
Euhanced Subject Interview (ESI): Contains all the components of the in person subject intc:rview 
plus resolution with the subject of any triggcmi issue information developed throughout the 

7 
investigation 
Note: When an ESI is requested, if the investigator was unable to conduct (UC} the ESI af\coz several 
attempts with the subject aod agcocy, a reduced fee is charged (as refloctcd). This can be avoided by 

. . aceurate sUbject location ioformatioo to OPM-FIS in tbe RSI request. 

State Department Passport Office (STP A): Coofinnation of a foreign-born subject's U.S. citizenship 
J by birth; also available for subject's spouse, cohabitant, and immediate family members (SSTP) 

T 
Interpol sc:.rch: A seach of mconls maintained by lntc:lpol (an international organization which 
facilitates the a change. of police information across 190 memb« countries) 
Financial Crimes Enforcement Networlc (FNCN): Department ofTreasw:y record check of select cash v transactions. This check is only available if the subject is in a National Security Position. 

Records and personal sources can be defined as employment, education, financial, residential, law 
enforcement, or public records coverage depending on the check requested. 

FEE 

$119 

$206 

$328 

$391 

$169 

$663 

$166 

$6 

$21 

$10 

In some situations, a NAC item cannot be conducted to obtain the requested record. Depending on the 
location of the information and the repository's electronic capabilities, the price of these items can range 
from the listed NAC item price up to the fieldwork item price. OPM-FIS will strive to obtain the item 
electronically at a lower cost to the agency when possible. 

3 
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DLA launches new CAGE search, inquiry, request system 
By S.. MOO<e, DlA lnformlttion Opemlonal Febtualy 17, 2016 

Defense Logistics Agency employees, customers and 1he general pubic win, at the end Of Febfuary, j Photos 

have a new tool for finding and req~ Commercial and Government Entity codes. 

The new CAGE Public website willla<n:h Feb. 26. H will consolidate all resources about CAGE aides, 
the five.OigH identifiers requftd for all buslne$ses 1tl8t wish lo do business w1111 the U.S. g<Nemment. 

CAGE Public in<:*l<les CAGE Sea-dl .,d Inquiry, dubbed CSI, which will replace the Business 

Identification Nwnber Cross-R~ Srsiem websMe, lo be decommissioned Feb. 25 at 6:00p.m. 

CAGE Public also includes CAGE Request, whlcll 0o1S10mers will use to request a CAGE code or 

update., exismg CAGE code. 

The CAGE Public websile wll provide a unf'll!d soUion for sean::hing CAGE codes, finding required 

klnnl, requesting a new CAGE code or updllling., existing CAGE code, news, training end frequen1ly ! 
asMd question~. This ~a big shill from the pEt. when CAGE resources were on seven! ! 
different Wllbslles cuslorrwn had to wont lhmugh 1o ensure they~~ to do business w1111 f DlA"""' (~'tao by Peul ~..., 
the go¥el'llml!l'l!, said Wyoma Smllh, CAGE program nwnag« In OLA lnfoonation Operations. 

"This chlwlge Is huge lo the wslomers out there, because if they can't get past the CAGE regislration 

validation step, then they are n01 eligible to niCeiYe ~funding in .,Y way,• Smilh said. 

'CAGE Is t1111 piwltal point in the regillnltion and validation ~. and having our information 
CU1SOiiclated In a single lllnding peWit wift provide a big benefit to rustomefs: 

1 of 1 

The BINCS wdllile, aclilie for moreii\IWI a decade, is a standalone CAGE seatch tool used by federal agencies, the mitil8ty aeovicel, Defense Department 
~s. govemrnent supp;ers, wiiDI'nerll and the geoeral public. CSI updates the sean:h tool into a strearnWled, user-friendly design tllat g!Yes customers 

advanced _.m options and modem~~ and func:tionatily, Smith said. 

"What we'wt done Is applied the hluslry standard and optimized the pages to be clean, simple, user friendly, intuitive and he!Put,• she said. 'We put It 1hrough an 

incredible trwlsformmion." 

OlA lnloonalion Operations ~ wOOting on a proof cf concept for a new CAGE website about 18 months ago, Smlh &aid. 'Mille the sMe- being developed, a 

- migralion put CAGE In Its own envtronment, gimg k even more flexibility and speed, and the team fOund w.ts to t.eep costs down whiie producing a quality 

pn:lduc:t, she said. The CAGE teMI used an 8lUIIlng contract and available technology to design tile site, l1llhef tllan buying a commetciaklll-fle.Shetf software 

pn:ldud, she noled, and used its usual plaming and development cycle and high level of elfoft to get the job dione. 

'This is an extremely successM ellor1, • Smith said. "This is one of the only sites that OLA manages 1hat is truly 1 ()().percent public, and I' a monumental to have it 
controlled and put Into plaoe as efliciently as k has been. For the !Mlic to do business witll DLA and tile government, tllis transition has to happen euoceasfuly: 

As part Of tile rollout Of CAGE Public, DLA will al&o taka ownerlhip of al Incoming CAGE transactions from f<lf1191 coun.,_, elirninldi'lg multiple handolfs cf data 

and making it faster for NATO countnes to process their CAGE codes, Smith said. This change came about because Of an audit readiness busiless requirement, 

.,d it wt1 help maintain data integrity and save money for~ lnvolveO In tile process, she said. 

EmplOyees and customers who frequenUy use BINCS should make note of the CAGE Public webSite address and updale their browser f8YOI!tes cr llookmal'Xs when 

the new site la<n:hes, Smltll said. For questions about CAGE, coract tile DlA Customer lntenldion Cenler II( dlaalntadcenlefQdla.mil or (8n) 352-2255. 
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